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1.

(o)

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENI

Bockground lnformollon

woter Services Regulotory Boord is o corporote body estoblished under the

provisions of the Woter Act 20l6 ond operoling under the provisions of the Stote

Corporotions Acl, Cop 446 of the lqws of Kenyo ond it is domiciled in Kenyo.

Princlpol Aclivitles

The mondoie of the institution is to oversee the implemenlotion of policies ond

stroiegies reloting lo provision of woter ond seweroge services. WASREB sels rules

ond enforces stondqrds thot guide the sector iowords ensuring thot consumers

ore prctected ond hove occess lo efficieni, odequote, offordoble ond

susloinoble services.

The principol octivities of the Woter Services Regulotory Boord occording to the

Woter Acl 2016 ore os follows: -

(i) Deiermine ond prescribe notionol siondords for lhe provision of woter services ond

ossei developmenl for woler services providers;

(ii) Evoluote ond recommend woter ond seweroge toriffs to the county woter services

providers ond opprove ihe imposition of such ioriffs in line with consumer protection

siondords;

(iii) Sei licence condilions ond occredit woler services providers;

(iv) Monitor ond regulole licensees ond enforce licence conditions;

(v) Develop o model memorondum ond orlicles of ossociotion to be used by oll

vroter componies opplying to be licensed by the regulotory boord to operote os

woter services providers;

(vi) Monitor complionce wiih stondords lncluding ihe design, construciion, operoiion

ond moinlenonce of fociliiies for the provision of woter services by the woler works

development bodies ond the woler services providers;

(vii) Advice the cobinet secretory on lhe noiure, extent ond condilions of finonciol

supporl io be occorded io woter services providers for providing woter services;

{viii) Moniior progress in lhe implementotion of lhe woler stroiegy ond moke

oppropriote reco m men do tio ns.

{ix) Mointoin q notionol dolobose ond informo'tion syslem on woter serylces;

(b)
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KEY ENIITY INFORMATION ANO MANAGEMENT(CONTINUED)

Prlnclpol Acllvltles (contlnued)

(x) Develop guidelines on lhe esioblishment of consumer groups ond fociliiote their

estoblishmenl;

(xi) lnspect woter works ond woter services to ensure lhol such works ond services meef

the prescribed stondords;

(xii) Report onnuolly io the public on issues of woter supply ond seweroge services ond

the performonce of relevont sectors ond publish ihe reporis in ihe gozette;

(xiii) Moke regulotions on woter services ond osset development which sholl include

business, investmeni ond finoncing plons in order to ensure efficienl ond effective

woter services ond progressive reolizotion of the right to woter services;

(xiv) Advise the cobinet secrelory on ony motter in connection with woier services; ond

(xv) Moke recommendotion20s on how io provide bosic woter services to morginolised

oreos.

Vlslon

The Vision of ihe Boord is "A prooctive ond dynomic woter services regulotor".

Mlsslon

To provide o regulolory environment lhot focilitotes efficiency, effectiveness ond equiiy

in the provision of woter services in line with the humon right to woter ond sonilotion.

Slroleglc ObJecllves

The Boords five oblectives ore os follows: -

o. Enhonce consumer ond other stokeholders' confidence in woter services

regulotion

b. Strengthen governonce in woter services provision,

c. Ensure o finonciolly sustoinoble ond sociolly responsive woter services sector.

d. Enhonce complionce with regulotions.

e. Strengtheninstitutionolcopociiy.

(c) Key Monogemenl

The Boord/s doy-to-doy monogement is under the following orgons:

oBoord of Directors

.Chief Executive Officer

. Monogement

. Stoff

tv
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT(CONTINUED)

(d) FiducloryMonogemenl

The key monogemenl personnelwho held office during the finqnciol yeor ended 30 June

2023 ond who hod direct fiduciory responsibilily were:

(e) FiducloryOverslghlArrongements

The boord hos set up the following commitiees which meet under well-defined lerms of

reference sel by the boord. This is intended to focililote efficient decision moking of the

boord in dischorging ils duiies ond responsibiliiies.

(l) Corporole Servlces Commltlee

This Commitiee deols wilh strolegic, finonciol, employmeni ond odministrolive issues. lts

responsibilities include; Performonce conlroct negotiotion; Reviewing of Annuol

Accounts; Reviewing Developmenl ond Recunent Budgets; Recommendotion of Boord's

Stroiegic Document, monitoring oll humon resources motiers ond monitoring the

finonciol monogement of lhe corporoiion ond motters of WASREB informolion,

communicolion ond medio system ond plons.

(lD Technlcol Servlces Commlllee

There is o Technicol Services Commitlee whose responsibilities include; Overseeing

development ond enforcemenl of regulolions ond lows; Approvol of ioriffs; Reviewlng of

woler service stondords ond ensuring complionce; Approvol of Service Provision

Agreements; Recommending issuonce of licenses io woter service boords ond moking

recommendolions os regord setting ond delerminotion of fees, levies, premiums ond

other chorges to be imposed for woter services.

I Ag. Chief Execulive Oflicer (from l6 December 2022) Dr. Julius Kirimi llungo

2 Ag. Chief Execulive Olficer (up lo l6 December 2022) Joseph K. Keter 'ndc'(K)

.t Direclor Corporole Services Dr. Julius Kirimi llungo
4 Direclor Licensing, Slondords ond Advococy (up to Moy

2023)
Eng. Peler Njoggoh

Ag. Direclor Licensing, Slondords ond Advococy Angelo W. Kimoni

6 Direclor Moniloring ond Enlorcement Richord Cheruiyol
7 Monoger Finonce ond Accounling Dovid Leleilo Kiboi

Joyce Moluri6 Monoger Supply Choin Monogemenl
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KEY ENIIIY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENI(CONTINUED)

(llD Audlt ond Rlsk Monogemenl Commltlee

As per the requirements of the Public Finonce Monogemenl Acl 2012, lhere is the oudil ond risk

monogemenl committee. lls responsibilities include; exomining ond ossessing lhe effecliveness ot

the inlernol control system; opproving lhe lntemol Audit progroms: corry oul speciol oudils,

verifying Boords ossets ond liobilities ond receiving reports from lhe lnternol Audilor ond lo odopl

o pro- oclive risk-bosed opprooch in ihe inlernol oudit syslem.

(f) WASREBHeodquorters
P.O. Box 41621 - 00100
NHIF Building
Ngong Rood
Nokobi. KENYA

(C) WASREB Conlocts
. TEL: +254 l0l 0202733561

Emoil: inf o@wosreb.go.ke
Websile: www.wosreb.go.ke

(h) WASREB Bonkerr

Notionol Bonk of Kenyo
Hill Bronch
P.O. Box 45219-0Ol0O
NAIROBI, KENYA

2. Kenyo Commerciol Bonk
Copitol Hill-4025
P.O. Box 69595-00400
NAIROBI, KENYA

3. Co-operolive Bonk of Kenyo
Upper hill Bronch, Kuscco Centre
P.O. Box 30415-00l0O
NAIROBI, KENYA

(l) lndcpendenl Audllors
The Audilor Generol
Office of the Audilor Generol
Anniversory Towers, University Woy
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
NAIROBI. KENYA.

0) Prlnclpol tegol Advlsor
The Altorney Generol
Stole Low Office ond Deportmenl of Juslice
Horombee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 l2
City Squore 00200
NAIROBI, KENYA

vt
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2. IHE BOARD OF DIRECIORS

He is on independent director oppointed on l3th October

2023. Job K. Chirchir is o Humon Resources Monogement

professionol ond hos worked in vorious institulions os ':'

boord member, mosi recenily, os o Boord Choirnru

Kenyo Foresi Services.

He is serving the Boord of Woter Services Regulotory Boorr,

on o three (3) yeor term.

Dr.Kobuthi is on independent direclor oppointed on 24th

Sepiember 2020. He holds o PhD in Business Adminislrotion

in Strotegic Monogemeni, speciolizing in corporote

governonce from the Universily of Noirobi. He hos o

Mosters Degree in Strotegic Monogemenl ond (.1

Bochelor's degree in morkeling ond finonce boih tror,

United Stotes lnlernqlionol University.

His vosl work experience spons from Proiect Monoger ot

Eost Africon Breweries Limited, Airport Monoger ot Jomo

Kenyolio lnlernotionol Airport, Generol Monoger, Kenyo

Airwoys, CEO ot AMREF's Meol Processing Ploni in

Turkono, Port Time Lecturer ol KCA Universiiy, USIU, to

Senior Lecturer of Africo lniernotionol Universiiy. He

currently runs EBN Creolions Limited os o Soforicom

Deoler. He retired from lhe boord on lsr Februory 2023.

KipkorirMr.Job

Chirchir

2

Dr. Edword Kobulhi
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (conlinued)

3 Ms. Wekeso is lhe Director, Deporiment of Tronsboundory

Woter Resources under the Ministry of Woter, Sonitolion

ond lrrigolion. She wos oppointed to the WASREB Boord

on 3lst Morch 2020 os olternote director to lhe PS Ministry

of Woter, Sonitotion & lnigotion.

She holds o Moster's of Science degree in Geology ond o

Bochelor of Science Degree in Geology from the University

of Noirobi. She hos held senior positions in the Minislry,

omong them member of the Nile Technicol Committee on

the Technicol Advisory Committee, member of the

Technicol Commiltee of the Africon Ministers' Council on

Woter (AMCOW). IGAD Technicol Committee on woter

ond the Moro River Bosin MoU.

Mr. Koronjo is o Senior Economic Policy Anolyst in Finonciol

ond Sectorol Affoirs Deportment. He wos oppoinled to

WASREB Boord on 30th September 2019 os olternote

direclor to the PS Notionol Treosury & Economic Plonning.

He holds o Moster of Business Administrotion Degree (MBA)

speciolizing in Slrotegic Monogemenl from Jomo

Kenyollo University of Agriculture ond Technology (JKUAI)

ond o Bochelor of Economics Degree from Kenyotto

University (KU). He hos over 30 yeors' experience iri

economic ond policy motters. He hos held senior positioris

in the Ministry of Finonce, omong them, being the Heocl of

Compelition motters in the Coost region from 1998 to 2000.

He is currenlly working in the Notionol Treosury.

4

Mr. Godfrey N.

Koronjo

Alternote CS, The

Notionol Treosury

Ms. Glodys Wekeso

Allernote Member PS

Ministry of Woter,

Sonitotion ond

lrrigotion

vllt



Water Scrvices Regulatory Board
Annual lleports and Financial Statements
For the year endcd 30 June 2023.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (conlinued)

Dr. Julius K. ltungo ossumed lhe office os the Acling Cr.,(

Execu'tive Officer ot the Woter Services Regulotory Boor'-,

(WASREB) on l6lh December. 2022. He is olso the Direct(..,

Corporole Services. He holds o Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) in

Business Administrolion from Jomo Kenyotlo University of

Agriculture ond Technology (JKUAI), Mosler in Business

Adminislrotion qnd Bochelor ol Commerce, Finonce Option bo'th

from the Colholic University of Eoslern Africo (CUEA). He is d

Certified Public Accounlont of Kenyo (CPAK), Certifled Public

Secretory of Kenyo (CPSK): o member of the lnsfilu'te of Certifie; I

Public Accoun'tonl of Kenyo (ICPAK) ond lnstitule of Cerlii,eL

Public Secrelories of Kenyo (ICPSK). Dr.ltungo hos over 25 yeors t.

experience in public sector monogement hoving worke.

previously in senior positions in Kenyo Posis onu

Ielecommunicolions Corporotion/Ielkom Kenyo, Agriculturol

Development Corporo'tion ond Nolionol Biosofely Authority. He

oiso worked os on Associote Lec'lurer ot the Kenyo Methodisl

University ond hos published exlensively in referenced journols.

Joseph K. Keler'ndc'(K) ossumed lhe office os lhe Acling Chief

Executive Officer ol 'the Woter Services Regulolory Boord

(WASREB) on I 3lh Jonuory , 2022. Mt. Kefer is o holder of Moster of

Business Administrolion (Projecl Monogemenl) from Kenyotto

Universiiy ond o Bochelor of Arls in Internotionol Relolions frr)rr r

I

United Sloles lnlernotionol Universily of Africo.

Prior lo joining WASREB, he served os Secretory Administrolion ,

lhe Minislry ol woter, Sonilolion ond lrrigotion belween 2017 onc

2021. During lhe period, he coordinoled lhe rolling out of lhree

successive Ropid Resulls lniliolives (RRl) woves which led io

completion of over 120 woler, irrigotion ond sonilolion projecls.

He olso porticipoled in lhe preporotions of lhe successf ul Kenyo

Sonilolion Conference held in Ocfober, 2019 ol Kenyotto

lnlernolionol Conference Centre. While ol lhe Minislry, Mr. Keter

wos Allernoie Direc'tor to Principol Secretory ol Athi woter Works

Developmenl Agency. His lenure os Ag. CEO ended on the l6'r

of December 2022.

Dr. Julius K. llungo

?

(
\i

5

6

Joseph K. Keter'ndc'(K)
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3. MANAGEMENT IEAM

Woter Services Regulolory Boord re-orgonized ils Orgonizotion Structure effeciive It
June 2020 os follows:

To effectively corry out its functions ond fulfil its strolegic obieclives ond mondote,

WASREB is structured into three (3) Directorotes ond five (5) Deportments reporting

direclly to the CEO os shown below:

DIRECTORATES

I . Licensing, Stondords ond Advococy

2. Monitoring ond Enforcement

3. Corporote Services

DEPARTMENTS

l. Corporotion Secretory & Legol Services

2. Corporote Communicotion

3. Reseorch, Plonning ond Quolity Assuronce

4. Supply Choin Monogement

5. lnlernol Audii

Dr. Julius K. ltungo ossumed lhe office os the Acting

Chief Executive Officer ol the Woier Services

Regulotory Boord (WASREB) on l6th December, 2022.

He holds o Docior of Philosophy (PhD) in Business

Adminislrotion from Jomo Kenyotio University of

Agriculture ond Technoiogy (JKUAT). Moster in

Business Administrotion ond Bochelor of

Commerce, Finonce Option bolh from the

Cotholic Universily of Eostern Africo (CUEA). He is

o Certified Public Accountont of Kenyo (CPAK),

Cerlified Public Secrelory of Kenyo (CPSK); o

member of the lnslitute of Cerlified Public

Accounloni of Kenyo (ICPAK) ond Institule of

Cerlified Public Secretories of Kenyo (ICPSK). Dr.

x

Dr. Jullus K. llungo

\i
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Itungo hos over 25 yeors of experience in public

sector monogemenl hoving worked previously in

senior positions in Kenyo Posls ond

Teleco m m u nico tio ns Corporotion/Telkom Kenyo,

Agriculturol Development Corporotion ond

Notionol Biosofety Authority. He olso worked os on

Associote Lecturer of ihe Kenyq Methodis r

University ond hos published extensively in

referenced journols.

Joseph K. Keter 'ndc'(K) ossumed lhe office os lhe

Acting Chief Executive Officer ol the Woter Services

Regulotory Boord (WASREB) on l3th Jonuory, 2022. Mt.

Keler is o holder of Moster of Business Adminiskotion

(Project Monogement) from Kenyoito University ond o

Bochelor of Arts in lnlernoiionol Relolions from United

Stoles lnternoiionol Universily of Africo.

Prior to joining WASREB, he served os Secrelory

Adminislrotion in the Ministry of Woler, Soniloiion ond

lnigotion between 2017 ond 2021. During the period,

he coordinoted the rolling oul of ihree successive

Ropid Resulls lnitiolives (RRl) woves which led lo

completion of over '120 woter, irrigotion ond sonilotion

projects. He olso porticipoied in lhe preporoiions of

ihe successful Kenyo Sonitolion Conference held in

October, 2019 oi Kenyotio lnternotionol Conference

Centre. While ot the Ministry, Mr. Keter wos Allernote

Director to Principol Secretory ol Alhi Woter Works

Development Agency. His tenure os Ag. CEO ended

on the l6th of December 2022.

2

Jo3oph K. Keter 'ndc'(K)
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4

Eng. Peier Njoggoh is the Director Licensing,

Stondords ond Advococy. He holds o Bochelor of

Science degree in Civil Engineering from the

University of Noirobi ond Moster of Science

degree in Environmentol Engineering from ihe

University of New Costle -Upon Tyne in UK.

Eng. Njoggoh hos over 25 yeors' experience ond

knowledge in the woler sector, hoving previously

worked os o senior monoger in severol wotei'

utilities os the Monoging Director of Vr'estern

Woter Services Compony; os Heod of Woter ond

Wostewoter deportmenls in Cenlrol Districl

Council, South Eost District Council ond Ghonzi

District Council- oll in the Republic of Botswono.

ond olso in the then Woter ond Seweroge

Deporlment- Noirobi City Council- Republic of

Kenyo.

He is o Professionol Engineer with the Engineers

Boord of Kenyo, o Corporote Member of the

lnstitution of Engineers of Kenyo (l.E.K) oncl

member of lnstilute of Wosle Monogemgnt of

Southern Africo. He retired in Moy 2023.

Richord Cheruiyot is the Director Moniloring ond

Enforcement. He holds o Bochelor of Science

degree in Anolylicol Chemistry from the Universiiy

of Noirobi. He is olso o holder of two Mosters

degrees in Environmentol Chemistry ond Business

Administrotion both from the University of Noirobi.

Mr. Cheruiyot hos over 23 yeors' experience irr

monogement of woter services both ol policy

3

Eng. Peler Njoggoh

Rlchord K. Cherulyol

Iltt
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v

t
Dovid lelelto Kiboi

levels, regulotion ond operotions with o bios in

regulotion, with o specific focus on the

development ond moniloring of complionce to

the regulolory fromework. Prior to joining WASREB,

he worked with the Noiionol Woter Conservotion

ond Pipeline Corporotion os the Depuly Regionol

Monoger in chorge of Technicol Services in ihe

Western Region.

Dovid Leleilo is the Monoger Finonce & Accounls.

He holds o 8.Com (Finonce) from Cotholic

University for Eostern Africo ond on MBA (strotegic

monogement) from University of Noirobi. He is o

Cerlified Public Accountont of Kenyo, CPA (K). He

hqs over 22 yeors' experience in Finonce ond

Accounting. Mr Leleito is o member of the

lnternotionol Woler Associoiion (lWA).

q
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4. CHAIRMAN'S SIAIEMENT

The yeor sow WASREB holding close to 20 public consultotion

meetings for licensing ond obout l5 Toriff consultotions of vorious

Woter Service Providers. Stokeholders comprised Couniy

Governmenl, Woter Works Developmenl Agencies, Consumers,

Business Communities ond Religious Groups, while ensuring

inclusion of minority groups.

Furlher, the Regulotor held regionol workshops with utilities ond counlies, oimed ot

building copocities of utility Monogers ond Boords of Directors, os well os ounty

executives on tenets of good governonce.

Turning to IMPACT 15, it hos reveoled o positive trend in woter coveroge, with on

increose trom 60% lo 62% tor piped woter syslems in reguloted utilities. The reporl olso

reveols o positive trend in woter coveroge, with on increose lrom 60% to 62% for piped

woter systems in reguloted utilities, highlights on overoll improvement in drinking woter

quolity ocross diiierent size cotegories. On woter quolity, the notionol overoge wos

95%. An improvement wos noted in oll the size cotegories. Utilities ore obliged lo

comprehensively plon on woter quolity monitoring ond monogement, both through

developing onnuol sompling progroms ond formulotion of woter sofety plons wilhin the

first yeor of licenSing.

I wish to congrotulote utiliiies thot continue to do well ond hope lhot the momentum

thot hos been reolized will be sustoined wilhin on environment of complionce.

WASREB commits to monitoring utilities with the sole purpose of improving services to

cilizens. However, colloborotion between the Regulotor, Notionol government ond

County governments is desiroble lo reolize this dreom.

Mr. o Klpkodr Ch chh

fi
i

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OT DIRECTORS
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5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

\I -l

Regulolion hos pushed utiliiies io ensure thol ihere is equily ond non-

discriminolion in the provision of services. consumers hove lhe correct

informoiion ond ore well informed on their rights ond obligolions.

Under secior development, the goins hove been reolized in ring

fencing of revenues ond lhus ovoiding copitol leokoge ond droin,

enhoncing ond optimizing finoncing ond increosing tronsporency. ln

oll these oreos greot developments hove been wilnessed. On the current reporting of lmpoct

15, there olso hos been o morginol improvemeni in ihe hours of woter supply, increosing from

1 6 to 17 . improvemenl in revenue collection efficiency, rising from 9 4% to 9 5%, ihis indicotor is

cruciol for sustoinoble woter service operolions. This repori is meont lo spur comporotive

competilion in the seclor, thus creoling impetus for lhe instilutions io improve their

performonce whilst encouroging occounlobility of slokeholders in the woter sector to ihe

public.

On Non-Revenue Woter, ii hos remoined ot 45%. ln finonciol lerms. lhe sector lost slightly more

thon KShs. I 1.2 Billiorr onnuolly. The omounl losl onnuolly in terms of volume is 205 million cubic

meters. ln furiheronce of these efforts, WASREB in colloborotion wiih Ministry of Woter.

Soniiotion ond lrrigotion lounched Operotion Lindo Moji, Lipo Moji! to curb woter theft moking

it ovoiloble to citizen. The oim of lhe operolion is lo nob those undertoking criminol oclivities

including illegol woter connections ond vondolism of woier uliliiies ond infrostructure in

generol.

This operotion will continue until oll illegol woler conneclions ore removed in order to ollow

genuine ond legol conneclions lo lhrive ond improve revenue generotion to woter utililies not

only in Noirobi but ocross the enlire country.

As we took to lhe fuiure, our focus conlinues to be formolizolion of service provision through

licensing of oll WSPs. Over 35 ulililies hove submilted opplicolions for licensing with 24 hoving

been licensed, loying o foundotion for betler services with serious commilmenl ond

responsibility for customer sotisfoction ond driving the progressive reolizolion of the right to

woler. WASREB remolns commitled io enforcing high performonce in the seclorwhich connol

hoppen withoui suppori from oll our stokeholders.

Dr. Julius K. llungo

AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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6. SIATEMENI OF WASREB'g PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR

tY 2022/2023

WASREB recognizes thot the finonciol heolth of ony institution is o key determinont for

sustoinobility. Therefore, in the review period, the Regulotor continued employing

meosures io ensure thot o sound finonciol bose wos mointoined. Among the meosures

put in ploce in the yeor included increosed surveillonce of the sector to ensure the

poyment of the regulotory levy ond imposing penolties to those who foiled to comply

with regulotory requirements. ln oddition, cosl conlrol meosures were underloken 1o

ensure efficiency in oll operotions.

During the period under review, the totol revenue increosed from Kshs. 417 million to

Kshs 432 million. This focilitoted the internol finoncing of development ond operotionol

expenditures.

The opproved budget for the period wos striclly followed ond this, coupled with cosl

control meosures, ensured o heolthy cosh flow position during the yeor.

Key Strotegic lssues To reolize its vision ond ochieve its purposes, this strotegy is premised

on tour (4) key themotic oreos: -

o) Governonce

b) Access lo Woler Services

c) Colloborolion

d) Effective Regulolor

Governonce

Good stewordship ensures proper deploymeni of resource ond curbs revenue leoks in

enterprises. Wosreb will oim of promoting improved governonce fromework in the

country both ot Notionol ond Counly levels. To this end, the Boord will put in ploce o

licensing ond monitoring fromework thot will ensure proper monogement of resources

towords reolizotion of increosed occess to woter services. The woter sector hos

fundomentol chorocteristics thot moke it highly sensiiive to ond dependent on multi-

level governonce. The Constitution of Kenyo 20'10 ollocoled increosingly complex ond

resource inlensive responsibilities to County Governmenls, resulting in inter-

dependencies ocross levels of government thot require co-ordinotion lo errsure

efficiency, effectiveness ond equity in service delivery. The Boord will foster mutuol co-
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operolion with lhe Couniy Governments on governonce of woter (WSPs), identify ond

prescribe solutions for regulotory issues qnd ensure seomless service delivery to the

citizenry. The copocity of WSPs will require enhoncement to enoble them lo corry oul

effective, efficient qnd sustoinoble woter services provision. Wqsreb will consequenlly

enhonce moniloring of licensees ond ensure complionce with the reguloiory

fromework.

Access lo Woler Servlces

Developmenl ond monogemeni of woter services infrosiruclure is copitol-intensive

business. Woter utilities ore torn between ihe need io invesl in replocing oging

infrostruclure while ot the sqme time findlng ihe finonciol resources to expond their

coveroge in on environment of increosed woler demond due to ropid urbonizotion. ln

light of the funding gops in the sector, Wosreb will endeovour to enhonce the revenue

inflows into lhe sector through diversificotion of revenue sources. This will be ochieved

by ossessing ond implementing justified cosl-recovery toriffs (inlernol finoncing);

building lhe confidence of development portners in ihe sector (developmenl porlners

finoncing); lobbying for increosed resource ollocoilon (exchequer) lo ihe sector

(public sector finoncing), promoiing occess to privote sector finoncing ond ensuring

lhe ring-fencing of woter revenues.

ln order lo enhonce equity ond the right lo woler, Wosreb will prescribe suiloble models

for woler service provision in morginolized oreos ond moke recommendotions to

County Governmeni for torgeted subsidy for WSPs whose justified toriffs connot cover

the O+M costs lo enhonce success. However, lhe recommendotion for subsidies will

hove io be linked to performonce. Additionolly, the regulotor will encouroge Public

Privote Portnerships (PPPs) ond Public Porlnerships (PPs) in the monogement of woter

service provision. Wosreb will in oddition, promote strotegies lowords building the

copocity of the WSPs to ensure thot they ore monoged ond run by persons with the

requisiie skills. Wosreb will olso seek to offer lechnicol ossisionce ond develop progroms

ihot focilitote knowledge shoring ond tronsfer between ond omongsl the utiliiies.

Colloborolion

This theme is oimed of creoting o fromework for engogement with key stokeholders

nomely; consumers, Notionol Government, Counly Governmenls, development
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portners, leorning/professionol instilutions, regulotory entities omong olhers. An

enobling development environment ond stokeholder goodwill in woter services

provision is greolly influenced by the level engogement with the stokeholder in

oddition to sotisfoction omongst the cusiomers of woter service providers. Accordingly,

the stokeholder engogement fromework will seek to ovoil informotion required for

necessory odvococy ond portnerships; provide for plotforms for portnerships ond

envisoge modolities for consumer comploint hondling ond dispute resolulion. Wosreb

will enhonce consumer proteciion through the reguloted ulilities. Knowledge is power

ond ensuring thot oll ployers ond octors understond their inter-linked roles ond

responsibilities in woler service provision will be the solution to ensure efficient service

delivery. To ochieve this ob.iective. Wosreb will seek lo strengthen iis brond os o

voluoble leoder ond resource point in woter services provision.

Effecllve Regulolor

Wosreb recognizes lhot the employee is integrol to the successful ochievement of

orgonizotionol skotegy. ln line with this, Wosreb will develop optimol stoffing slructures

to enoble the effeclive dischorge of its mondote ond incorporote o progressive

corporote culture thot will oltroct, retoin ond promole o vibront workforce. ln oddition,

physicol infrostructure necessory to support service delivery will be enhonced, while

focused resource mobilizotion will be underloken to support to fund the regulotory

progroms.

WASREB develops its onnuol work plon bosed on the 4 strotegic pillors. ossessment of

the Boord's performonce ogoinst its onnuol workplon is done on quorterly bosis. The

Boord ochieved ils performonce torgets set for the FY 2022/2023 for its 4 strotegic pillors

os indicoted b,elow: -

(o)Compllonce wilh Llcense Condlllons on Eslobllshed Slondords Monllored

The Boord corried out inspeclions on 36 WSPs for Woter Quolily Surveillonce ond

Toriff lmplementotion Reviews done in 7 WSPs.

(b)lmplemenlolion of Non-Revenue Woter (NRW) Slondords Monilored

The Boord enforced the implementotion of NRW stondords to reduce the NRW levels

through the following ociivities during the yeor: -

. Reviewed NRW reports ond NRW reduction plons submitted by WSPs
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r Ensuring NRW requirements ore included in lhe licensing of the WSPs

o Ensuring oll toriffs evoluoted hove o condition on NRW.

(c) Advlsorles in Woler Servlceg Provislon Provlded lo Nollonol qnd County

Governmenls

During the yeor, two odvisories were issued:

r Advisory on Bulk woter supply fromework under lhe woter oct 20,l6 to oll WWDAs

o Advisory on Eligibility Criierio for Boord of Directors to oll WSPs

(d) County Engogemenl Slrolegy lmplemenled

The Boord engoged Kojiodo county regording the Nol Turesh Bulk woler supply system

in Moy 2022 where the counly senior officiols were in ottendonce.

The Boord is ensuring constont provision of odvisories in identified ond emerging issues.

(e) Consumer Engogemenl ln Woler Services Dellvery Focilitoted

WASREB fqcilitoted Consumer Engogement in Woler Service Delivery by:

i) Enhoncing copocity of utiliiies to improve on lheir credilworlhiness through 4

workshops ond sessions held.

ii) Hoving moinstreoming compoigns on Non-Revenue Woter reduction.

iii) Enhoncing consumer engogemenl through medio ond other

communicotion chonnels.

(f) Guldelines on Regulollon of On-Sile Sqnllollon (OSS) Developed

The Boord developed the OSS guidelines for regulotion ond wos presenled to the

Boord of Directors by end of the yeor.

(g)Annuol Sub-Sector Peilormonce Reporl Developed ond Published

Doto collection ond onolysis for 90 WSPs ond Rurol Smoll Scole Woter Service Providers

for the yeor 2021 122 wos underloken. The Boord published ond disseminoted lhe

performonce of lhe woler services sector by 30th June 2023.
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENI

The Woter Services Regulotory Boord is committed to the volues ond principles of good

corporote governonce. Good corporote governonce requires thqt the Boord of

Directors must govern the corporotion with integrity ond enterprise in o monner which

entrenches ond enhonces the mondole it hos under section 7l of the Woter Act 2016.

This mqndote is not only regulotory but embroces the corporotion's interoction with

government ond other stokeholder such os the woter services boords ond their

providers, consumers of woter services, the medio, public opinion mokers ond pressure

groups.

The direclors ond monogement of WASREB regord corporote governonce os pivotol

to the successes of the corporotion ond ore unreservedly committed to ensuring lhot
good corporote governonce is proctised so thot WASREB remoins o susloinoble ond

vioble vehicle for reguloting woter services in Kenyo.

As o public service orgonizotion, the Boord's decisions ore guided by lhe core lenets

prescribed in MWONGOZO, the Public Officers Ethics Acl, ond signed internol codes of

conducl. We continuolly sirive to strengthen ond sustoin the trusl thot the government,

lhe woter sector ond the public hove ploced on us. Accordingly, the Boord ond its

commiltees regulorly evoluote the lolest notionol ond internotionol stondords with the

oim of incorporoting them in the business processes of WASREB so os to consistently

deliver on our mondote.

(o) Boord of Dlreclors

The directors ore given oppropriote informotion so thot they con mointoin full ond

effective control over strotegic, finonciol, operolionol ond complionce issues. Except

for direction ond guidonce on generol policy, the boord hos delegoted outhority for

conduct of doy-to-doy business to the Chief Executive Officer. The boord nonetheless

refoins oversight responsibility for estoblishing ond mointoining the control of finonciol,

operotionol ond complionce issues. The directors met six (6) times during lhe 2022/2023

finonciol yeor.

xx



Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year cnded 30 June 2023.

(b) Commiflees of lhe Boord

The boord hos set up the following commitiees which meet under well-defined terms

of reference set by the boord. This is intended to fociliiote efficient decision moking of

the boord in dischorging its duties ond responsibilities.

i. Corporole Servlces Commltlee

This Commiitee deols with slrolegic, finonciol. employment ond odminiskotive

issues. lls responsibilities include; Performonce conlroct negotiotion; Reviewing of

Annuol Accounts; Reviewing Developmenl ond Recurrent Budgets;

Recommendoiion of Boord's Strolegic Document, monitoring oll humon resources

motlers ond monitoring the finonciol monogement of the corporotion ond motters

of WASREB informolion, communicolion ond medio syslem ond plons. The

Corporoie Services Commitlee mel ihree (3) limes during lhe finonciol yeor

2022/2023,

ii. Technicol Servlces Commitlee

There is o Technicol Services Commitlee whose responsibilities include; Overseeing

developmenl ond enforcemenl of regulolions ond lows; Approvol of toriffs;

Reviewing of woter service stondords ond ensuring complionce; Approvol of

Service Provision Agreemenls; Recommending issuonce of licenses io woter service

boords ond moking recommendotions os regord selling ond deierminotion of fees,

levies, premiums ond other chorges to be imposed for woter services. The Technicol

Services Committee met three (3) times during lhe finonciol yeor 2022/2023.

lll. Audit ond Rlsk Monogemenl Commlllee

As per the requirements of the Public Finqnce Monogemenl Acl 2012, there is the

oudit ond risk monogemenl committee. lls responsibilities include; exomining ond

ossessing the effectiveness of the internol control system; opproving the lnternol

Audit progroms; corry out speciol oudits, verifying Boords ossets ond liobilities ond

receiving reports from lhe lnternol Auditor ond to odopt o pro- octive risk-bosed

opprooch in the internol oudit system. The Audit ond Risk Monogemenl Committee

met lwo (2) times during lhe finonciol yeor 2Q22/2023.
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8. MANAGEMENI DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

WASREB operotionol ond finonciol performonce is os follows; -

(l) lnlernol Conlrols

WASREB hos defined procedures ond finonciql controls to ensure occurote reporting

ond sofeguording of resources. The system of internol conlrol defines procedures to

ensure thot qssets ore sofeguorded, tronsoctions ore outhorized ond recorded, ond

thot moteriol enors ond irregulorilies ore either prevented or detected within o

reosonoble period of time. The performonce of WASREB is reported regulorly to the

Boord of Directors lhrough performonce trends, forecosts, octuol performonce onolysis

ond budgets. The Boord reviews the effectiveness of inlernol control systems by

ossessing the work of both internol ond externol ossuronce providers. lnternol

ossuronce is conied out by the lnternol Audit section, which reports to the Audit ond

Risk monogement Committee. The section provides confirmotion thot stondords ond
policies ore complied with. Externol ossuronce is provided by the Office of the Auditor

Generol.

The Boord is responsible for reviewing internol conlrol systems. Over the period of

reporting, ihe Boord wos sotisfied thot the system wos effective. However, il is

recognized thot ony system of internol control con only provide reosonoble but not

obsolule ossuronce ogoinst moteriol mis-stotemerrt or loss. lnternol conlrol cnd risk

monogement syslems ore designed to mitigote rother thon eliminote the risks identified

in the finonciol reporting process.

(ll) Rlsk Assessmenl ond Conlrol Actlvltles

The risk ossessment process reloted 1o finonciol reporting is conducted onnuolly. The

significont occounts in the finonciol stotements ore identified bosed on the evoluotion

of the impoct ond likelihood of the risks moleriolizing. lnlernol oudil ensures oblective

ond independent ossessmenl of the odequocy, efficocy ond quolily of internol

controls.

Monogement is responsible for ensuring thot inlernol control octivities ore performed

ond documented, ond is reguired to report to lhe Corporote Services Commitiee on

complionce on o quorterly bosis. ln oddition, WASREB hos implemented o formol oudit

of lhe strotegy, budget ond finonciol performonce. The monitoring of inlernol controls
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onci risk n ronogentent syslems is performed of multiple levels such os periodicolreviews

of ciocumentotion. The oudils ore performed by the internol oudit ond monitored by

the Audit Commitlee. The Audit Commiltee chorter outlines ils roles ond responsibilities

reloted lo supervision ond monitoring of internol conlrol ond risk monogement systems.

The moniloring is performed on the bosis of periodicol reporting from Finonce, lnlernol

ond Exlernol Audlts.

(lil) Chollenges

While it con be reporled thot the finonciol heolth of the institution wos generolly sound,

chollenges were encountered in the collection of the regulolory levy os mosi

componies were unoble to cleor their oneors on time. ln oddiiion, woter componies

did not fully odhere to the toriff condilion orr the remission of levy provided in the

opproved loriff.

The Kenyo Towns Sustoinoble Woter Supply ond Sonitotion Progrom (KTSWSSP) is

onolher key project being implemenled wilh support from the Africon Development

Bonk. The project's moin objeclive is to improve occess, quolity ond ovoilobility of

woter supply in I9 towns ond wostewoter monogement services in l7 towns.

The woter ond sonitoiion Developmenl Project (wsDP) being funded by the world

Bonk, is being implemented in six counties nomely; Momboso, Woiir, Gorisso, Kwole,

Kilifi ond Toito Toveto.

(lv) Bulld Resllience

It is estimoted lhol opproximolely 4Q% of the globol populotion foce woter scqrcily,

while floods ond other woter-reloled disosters occount for 70% of oll deoths reloled to

noturol disosters. li is therefore evident thot climote chonge will continue to hove for

reoching effecls on drinking woler supplies; ronging from quontity to quolity ospecls.

As inierventions qre being put in ploce to miligole lhe impocts of climote chqnge, the

seclor should build resilience of ihe woler supply systems. This will oct os meons of

odoptotion ond hence minimize lhese impocis. The sector needs lo review policies on

wqter sloroge ond flood control; monoge woter demond, omong competing needs.

There is need to improve operotion ond mqintenonce, to reduce wosloge os on

interveniion to deol with the chollenge.
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(v) lncreoselnveslmenl

It is opprecioted thot the gop between the ovoiloble finonciol resources for the sector

ogoinst the investment requiremenis remoins huge. lt is however noted thot o molority

of the investments lock the lost mile infrostructure. This presents o chollenge since

investments on first mile without o supporting lost mile, implies thot consumers connot

receive lhe much-needed service. lt is olso noted lhot o number of ployers hove o role

in osset development ond synergies need to be built to ovoid duplicotion. Duplicotion

mokes the investments ineffective. To optimise on investments, the seclor requires o

coordinoled opprooch. The Ministry of Woler, Sonitotion ond lnigotion, is in the process

of developing o notionol investmenl plon which will guide oll inveslments in the sector.

(vl) Sonltotlon ls Wontlng

It is estimoted lhol 68% of the populotion is served through non-sewered sonitotion

system. This percentoge is expected lo increose os we move lowords 2030. The

estoblishment of o sonitotion deportment ot the policy level will go o long woy in
providing the much-needed policy guidonce on NSS. The regulotor hos developed

some stondords both technicol ond operotionol on NSS. These however, moy nol

reolise much impoct without o proper policy fromework.

Going forword, o number of incentive mechonisms hove been proposed lo ochieve

lhis including:

o. Monitoring ond onnuol reporling on sewer ond on-sile sonitolion

b. Cost occouniing for woler ond seweroge/sonitolion services

c. Toriff increoses with improved sewer ond on-sile sonitotion

d. Ronking influenced by engogement in sewer ond on-site sonitotion

e. lnlroduction of o sonitotion development levy lo supporl improvement in occess

to sonitolion services

f. lmplementotion of CWIS Services Assessment ond Plonning Tool.

The regulotor is considering incorporoting sonilotion os o ronking KPI in the ossessment

of utilities in f uture.

(vll) Reduce Woler lossec

Non-Revenue Woter (NRW) is of 45%. ln finonciol terms ond ot the cunent overoge

NRW of 45% ond lhe sector turnover of KShs. 23.2 Billion, ogoinst on occeptoble sector
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benchmork ol 20%, then conservotively, the sector is losing qpproximolely KShs. 10.5

billion. These include:

o. lncorporoling in the license condiiion o requirement for o stroiegy io deol wilh NRW

including hoving the requisiie struciure ond stoff .

b. Revision of the NRW monogemenl slondords to incorporote the lessons leornt in the lost

six yeors of implementotion.

c. Hoving NRW os o key component in ossessing lhe potenliol of o ulility 10 lurn oround.

(vlll) Enhonce lncluslvlty

The presenl populotion served by the reguloted WSPs is jusi oboui 53%, implying thot the resl

of lhe populotion is still relionl on services ihol ore noi reguloled. The Guideline on Provision of

woter Services in the Rurol ond olher Underserved Areos oims ot driving ihe objective of

uniform stondords under the rights 1o woter ond soniiolion. The current report hos provided o

boseline of the type of woier services thot this segment of the populoiion receives. Counlies

ore expecled io use lhe doto collected to improve plonning ond monogement of woter

services in ihese oreos. lt is therefore incumbent upon the counlies ond WSPs lo develop

reolistic roodmops for the implementoiion of lhis Guideline. This is importont io guorontee ihe

heolth ond sofety of consumers by ensuring lhoi operotors odhere to slondords in terms of

quolity, cost ond cuslomer service.

ln furtheronce of ihis obllgotion, the regulotor in porlnership with ihe counties will require oll

woler system operotors to register ond obloin licenses for their operolions. The inltiolive follows

the successful registrolion of the some in Noirobi Couniy.

(lx) lmprove Govelnonce

lnodequoie governonce continues to be on impediment to effeclive delivery of services by

ulilities. Preservotion ond enforcement of proper governonce siondords is cruciol to ihe slobility

of the secior. Reolizing this, however, iokes time ond utilities hove to be conlinuolly engoged

1o drive this ogendo. The regulotor hos continued lo engoge with key octors in this oreo

including ihe lop county monogement, ihe Boords of ihe utililies ond the top monogemenl.

A governonce hondbook is belng prepored to ossist counties in enforcing governonce

stondords. Further, the regulotor will continue lo moniior utilities to ensure lhey odhere lo

prescribed service siondords by meons of o colloborotive fromework ihot focilitoies

tronsporency lhrough proper reporling ond mokes the octivities of eoch ployer predictoble for

o more robust seclor.

xxv



Water Senices Regulatory Board
Annuel Reports and Financial Ststements
For the year ended 30 June 2023.

9. ENVIRONMENIAL AND SUSIAINABII.ITY REPORTING

WASREB ocknowledges its responsibility to society in its copocity os o corporote citizen;

consequently, it endeovours to ploy on oclive role in notionol motters os per its

mondote besides contributing to vorious worlhy couses.

WASREB hos continued to offer odvices lo different stokeholders in the sector to

focilitote occess to quolity woter services through the following oclivities;

l) Shows ond Exhlblllons
WASREB joined the rest of Kenyons in morking this yeor's World Woler Doy celebrotions
held ot Lodekejek Pry. School, Mororol Somburu County on 22nd Morch 2023. During
the event tree seedlings were plonted ond o roof cotchmenl commissioned.

WASREB porticipoted ot the onnuol lnternotionol Trode Foirs by Agriculturol Society of
Kenyo in Momboso on 2nd to 6th November ond Noirobi on 26n September to 2nd

October 2022, where they did o high consumer engogement on motters woter ond
sonitotion.

Workshops
The Ministry of Woter, Sonitotion ond lnigotion held o virtuol troining for WASREB stoff
on the Woler Seclor Reforms under Woter ACT 2016. The purpose wos io sensitize stoff
on the exp.pnded mondote of WASREB within the new ACT for effective service
delivery. WASREB underlook Mid Term Review of its Strotegic Plon 2018-2023.

WASREB conducled o two-doy volidotion workshop on the new Guideline on
Sonitotion Trode ond Effluent in Noivosho trom 23rd-241h Morch, 2023. MDs from
Kisumu, Eldoret, Movoko, Thiko, Molindi, Nyeri were present. Portners WSUP, WRA,
NEMA ond CECMs from Kisumu ond Kericho were in ottendonce.

WASREB orgonized o 2-doy complionce workshop of Hill Court Resort, Nokuru from
2nd-3rd Morch, 2023. The seminor torgeted utilities from North Rift, L.Victorio North ond
L.Victorio South WWDAs. Discussions were on licensing, toriff, governonce, Alternotive
Finoncing, NRW ond sonitotion levy.

WASREB in conjunction with UNICEF held o 3-doy workshop from 23rd -25th Moy, 2023
on Bottleneck Anolysis in Woler Sector Finoncing of Morendol Centre, Noivosho.
Porliciponts comprised Utilities ond Counly Woter chiefs from Noirobi, Nokuru ond
Homoboy Counties CoG Minislry WASPA WWDAS omong others.
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iD Choriloble Evenls
WASREB corried out o tree plonting exercise ol Murugumo Primory School in Meru

County, os porl of CSR octivities ond in line with the Presidentiql Directive on tree
plonling in Morch 2023. WASREB donoted 2,500 indigenous seedlings towords the
venlure.

WASREB in colloborolion with Eldoret Woter (ELDOWAS) plonted lrees in Kopkoren

Dom in Eldorel, Uosin Gishu Counly on 23rd June, 2023. This wos in fulfilment of the
Presidentiol directive to increose Kenyo's forest cover. Moi University students, CFA

teom, Areo leoders, Geo Fronl nursery podicipoted in the exercise. WASREB donoted
4,500 tree seedlings.

iiD County Engogemenl Actlvltles
WASREB Boord of Direclors ond Monogemenl held workshops besides hoving foce to
foce engogemenls wilh Governors ond County Executive Committee Members in 25

Counties between November, December 2021 ond April 2023.

WASREB Monogement held o round toble meeling with Murong'o County top bross

in line with County engogement strotegy on0910312023 ot WASREB offices. Governor
HE Dr. lrungu Kong'oto, Moroguo MP Mory Womouo ond CECM Woler Eng' Mory

Mogochi discussed cross cutting issues offecling woter ond sonitotion provision in the

cou nly.

A governonce workshop orgonized by WASREB in conjunclion with Goisby Africo ond
Council of Governors-Kenyo look ploce of ihe Trovelers' Beoch hotel, Momboso from

4th -6th April, 2023. Porticiponts included cECMs woter Affoirs trom 47 counties,
Ministry of Woter &Sonitotion ond lnigolion Woter Sector Trust Fund omong others. The

workshop wos opened by PS MWSI Dr. Kiprono Ronoh ond oddressed by Toito Toveto

Governor HE Andrew Mwodime who is choir to Woier Coucus of CoG.

WASREB Monogemenl hod o meeting with Kojiodo Counly on enforcing good
governonce on 9th Moy, 2023 ol the Office of the County Governor. Leoding the teom
wos Ag. CEO WASREB Dr. Julius ltungo ond it comprised Governor HE Joseph Ole Lenku,

Germon Bonk KFw, Ministry of Wqler, Sonitolion ond lrrigotion, Alhi Woter Works

Development Agency, Oloo Loiser Woter Monogement ond BoD.
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Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports snd Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023.

IO.REPORI OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with lhe oudited finonciol stotemenls for the

yeor ended June 30, 2023 which show the slote of Woter Services Regulotory Boord

(wASREB) offoirs.

L Prlnclpol ocllvlllet

The principol octivity of WASREB is to protect the inlerests ond rights of consumers in

the provision of woter services.

ll. Resulls

The results of the entity for the yeor ended June 30, 2023 ore set out on poge l-6

lll. Dlreclorr

The members of the Boord of Direclors who served during the yeor ore shown on

poge vii-x

lv. Surplus remlsslon

ln qccordonce with Regulotion 219 (2) of the Public Finonciol Monogement (Notionol

Government) Regulotions, regulotory entities sholl remit into Consolidoted Fund, ninety

per centum of its surplus funds reporled in the oudited finonciol stotemenls ofter the

end of eoch finonciol yeor. WASREB declored o surplus of Kshs.23,785,3U during the

FY 2022/2023 ond hence will remit Kshs. 16.585,025 io The Notionol Treosury ofter

odjustment for copitol expenditure incuned on purchose of properly, plont ond

equipmenl (PPE) worth Kshs. 5,373,634.00.

v. Audllors

The Auditor Generol is responsible for the stolutory oudit of WASREB in occordonce with

Arlicle 229 of the Constitution of Kenyo ond the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Boord

J SEA MURUKA
TE SECRETARY/SECREIARY TO THE BOARDcoR
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I 'I 
. SIATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBITTTIES

Seclion 8'l of the Public Finonce Monogement Aci, 2012 ond (secrion 14 of lhe Slole
Corporotions Act, woter Act 2016, require the Directors lo prepore finonciol siotemenis in
respect of WASREB, which give o true ond foir view of the stote of offoirs of WASREB ot ihe end
of the finonciol yeor/period ond the operoting results of WASREB for the yeor ended 30 June
2023.The Direciors qre olso required to ensure ihot WASREB keeps proper occounling records
which disclose wiih reosonoble occurocy ihe finonciol posilion of WASREB. The Directors ore
olso responsible for sofeguording the ossels of lhe WASREB.

The Directors ore responsible for lhe preporolion ond presentotion of WASREB 's finonciol
stotements, which give o true ond foir view of lhe stole of offoirs of WASREB for ond os ot the
end of the finonciol yeor (period) ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i)

mointoining odequole finonciol monogement orrongements ond ensuring thol ihese
continue to be effeciive throughout the reportlng period; (ii) mointoining proper occounting
records, which disclose with reosonoble occurocy of ony time lhe finonciol posiiion of lhe
entiiy; (iii) designing, implemenling ond mointoining internol conlrols relevont 1o ihe
preporolion ond foir presenlotion of the finonclol stolemenls, ond ensuring lhot they ore free
from moteriol misslotements, whether due to enor or froud; (iv) sofeguording the ossets of
WASREE; (v) seleciing ond opplying opproprioie occounling policies; ond (vi) moking
occouniing estimotes thoi ore reosonoble in lhe circumstonces.

The Direciors occepl responsibility for WASREB's finonciol stotemenis, which hove been
prepored using opproprioie occounling policies supporled by reosonoble ond prudent
judgements ond estimotes, in conformity with lnternolionol Public Sector Accounting Stondords
(IPSAS), ond in the monner required by ihe PFM Acl,2Ol2 ond (the Siote Corporoiions Act),
Woter Act 20l,6. The Direciors ore of lhe opinion thot WASREB's finonciol stoiements give o true
ond foir view of the stote of WASREB's tronsoclions during the finonciol yeor ended June 30,

2023, ond of WASREB's finonciol position os ot thql dole.

The Direciors further confirm the completeness of ihe occounling records mointoined for
WASREB, which hove been relied upon in ihe preporolion of WASREB's finonciol stotements os
well os lhe odequocy of the systems of internol finonciol conirol.

Nolhing hos come to ihe oiteniion of the Directors io indicote thoi WASREB's will not remoin o
going concern for ol leosi the nexi twelve months from the dote of this stolement.

Approvol ol lhe llnonclol 3lolemenls

The Boord's finonciol stoiemenls were opproved by the Boord on 27th Septembet 2023 ond
signed on its beholf by:

IF:,
CPA DR. JUTIU ITUNGA

AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OTIICER

rcPAK NO 854r

DAIE: f2..f " |,9

CPA DAVID KIBAI TETEITO

,IAANAGER FINANCE & ACCOUNIS,

tcPAK NO 7983

DAIE: (2.{z lry'

KO

CHAIRMAN

J
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON WATER SERVICES REGULATORY
BOARD FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I f audited the accompanying financial statements of Water Services Regulatory
Board set out on pages 02 to 36, which comprise of the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-Generol on ll'aler Sen'ices Regulato4' Boardfor the year ended 30 June, 2023



amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects
the financial position of Water Services Regulatory Board as at 30 June, 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with Legal
Notice No.252 of 18 December, 2015 and the Public Finance Management Acl,2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1, Unreconciled Debit Entries in Licenses, Fees and Permits

The statement of financial performance reflects licenses, fees and permits amount of
Kshs.349,176,506 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. lncluded in this
amount are debit balances totalling Kshs.8,180,574 in respect of Kiambere - Mwingi
Water Company Kshs.1,104,160 and Kikuyu Water Company Limited Kshs.7,076,414,
whose credit balances have not been reconciled. Further, these balances had no
corresponding reconciling credits.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the licenses, fees and permits
revenue of Kshs.8,180,574 could not be confirmed.

2. lnaccuracies in Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.29,303,588 as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. However,
circularization carried out on three (3) trade debtors revealed unexplained and
unreconciled variances as summarized below:

Water Service Provider

Financial
Statements

(Kshs.)

Third Party
Confirmation

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Mombasa Water Company 30,355,459 180,344,928 (149,989,469)
Tavevo Water Companv 1,504,364 49,153,565 (47.649,201\
Kwale Water Company 5,590,666 36,160,675 (30,570,009)

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from non-exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.29,303,588 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). lam independent of the Water Services Regulatory Board
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe

o
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that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Undisclosed Contingent Liabilities Relating to Legal Cases

Review of the court cases against the State Corporation revealed that legal cases were
not disclosed in the Board's financial statements. This is contrary to lnternational Public
Sector Accounting Standards 1, Presentation of financial statements Paragraph 27 .

2. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual performance reflects a final receipts
budget and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.452,698,565 and Kshs.431,875,071
respectively, resulting to an under-collection of Kshs.20,823,494 or 5o/o of the budget.
Similarly, the Board spent Kshs.408,089,687 against an approved budget of
Kshs.448,033,687 resulting to under-expenditure of Kshs.39,944,000 or 9% of the
budget. Further, the budget is not balanced.

The underfunding and under-performance affected the planned activities of the Board and
may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of financial statements. There were no key audit matters to report
in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Years Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements and Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, the Management has not resolved the issues or given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board and The National Treasury Circular.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the mafters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Reporl ofrhe Auditor-General on Wqter Services Regulalory Board for the year ended 30 June, 202j
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Uniustified Foreign Training

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services expenditure
of Kshs.241 ,652,013 as disclosed in Note 1 3 to the financial statements. This
amount includes foreign travel and subsistence allowance of Kshs.21,897,307.
On 16 September,2022, Management approved a training program for fifteen (15)
officers on public and donor funded procurement procedures from 26 September, to
07 October, 2022 al Eastern and Southern Management lnstitute (ESAMI) headquarters
in Arusha. Review of records revealed that the board incurred Kshs.8,584,718 on foreign
travel and subsistence allowances during the training. However, this expenditure could
have been avoided had the Management done a feasibility study on locally available
training institutions for the program.

ln the circumstances, value for money was not achieved during the kaining.

2. Delay in Appointment of a Substantive Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Review of records revealed that during a Board meeting held on 01 December, 2022, a
resolution was made to appoint the current acting CEO as the Acting Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 13 December, 2022. fhe appointment was for a period of six (6)
months or until the recruitment of a substantive CEO. However, as at the time of audit in
December, 2023, lhe current acting CEO has been acting for more than twelve (12)
months after being appointed on an acting capacity. Further, Management failed to
provide evidence of extension of the appointment after the first six (6) months which
lapsed in June, 2023. The appointment has exceeded the maximum six (6) months
stipulated in Section C.14(1) of Public Service Human Resource Policies and Procedures
Manual,2016.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Anomalies in Procurement Processes

3.1 Unfair Award of Printing Services

The Board invited and sent quotations to sixteen (16) firms to apply for quotation for
design and printing of 1,000 copies of IMPACT 15 report. Among the criteria set vide
document dated 17 May,2022, was that the bidder should have experience in design and
layout of the publications and reports, proven experience with publications of 80 pages
and above. The Board awarded the quotation to a local company having quoted
Kshs.870,000 and was scored by evaluators an average of 10 points for evidence of
similar assignments even though the firm did not provide any evidence or experiences for
similar works. Another local company that had quoted Kshs.570,000 had attached proof
of similar experience with publications of eighty (80) pages and above was scored an
average of zero (0) points. Also, the awarded firm scored an average of ten (10) points
on timeliness and flexibility having only indicated in a quotation schedule that the delivery
is 5 days. The firm which had quoted the lowest price was awarded an average of 7.5
points having stated the same as the awarded firm. Had the procurement process been
fair, Management could have saved Kshs.300,000.

Report ofthe Audilor-General on Woler Services Regulatory Boardfor the year eruled 30 June, 2023
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3.2 Unjustified Supply of Branded T-Shirts

Review of procurement documents for quotation Ref No. WASREB/QT/49D022-2023tor
supply and delivery of branded polo T-shirts revealed that the firm that was awarded did
not meet the set criteria of proven experience of similar works and delivery of goods within
five (5) days after LPO is issued. Further, the awarded company quoted Kshs.650,000
denied the lowest bidder who had attached similar documents and having quoted
Kshs.459,500 with no justification from the evaluation report. Had the evaluation exercise
been fair, then Management could have saved Kshs.190,500.

3.3 Failure to Meet set Criteria

Review of procurement documents for quotation Ref No. WASREB/QT/3912022-2023
revealed that the firm which was awarded to supply and deliver another consignment of
branded polo T-shirts and umbrellas at a cost of Kshs.380,000 did not meet the set criteria
as the firm did not submit samples of designs for each item and proven experience of
similar works.

3.4 Lack of Notification of Award, Regret Letters and Letter of Acceptance from
the Winning Bidder

Review of procurement file for tender No. WASREB/RFP10312022-2023 amounting to
Kshs.2,810,689 for media advertising agent revealed that the procurement unit did not
notify in writing, the person submitting the successful tender that his or her tender had
been accepted. Further, the successful bidder did not signify in writing the acceptance of
the award nor did the Accounting Officer notify in writing all other persons who submitted
the tenders that their tenders were not successful. This is contrary to Section 87(1,2 and
3) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 on notification of intention to
enter into a contract.

ln the circumstances, the procurement processes were not competitive and value for
money was not realized. Further, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Comingling of Project Account Funds

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from other Government entities
of Kshs.78,033,095 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements which includes
Kshs.73,451,797 relating to Water and Sanitation Development Project (WSDP) Grants.
However, review of bank statements for the project operated at a local bank revealed that
the Board did not run the operations of the WSDP projects from a designated account but
instead, all funds were transferred to WASREB operations account maintained at the
National Bank. This is contrary to the guidelines stipulated by the World Bank regarding
the management of WSDP funds disbursed to WASREB.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the guidelines.

5, lrregular Payment of Bonus

The statement of financial performance reflects Kshs.148,120,998 in respect to employee
costs as disclosed in Note 1 1 to the financial statements. The amount includes bonus
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payments of Kshs.3,058,636 that were irregularly paid to all the employees in the month
of December, 2022. However, the following unsatisfactory issues were noted:

i. Management submitted WASREB salary structure, including the rates of allowances
to the Salaries and Remuneration Commission (SRC) on 25 May, 2022 which was
in response to the implementation of the allowance policy guideline by SRC.

i. ln a letter Ref No. SRC/TS/24I5 (97) and dated 24 August, 2023 SRC advised
Management to retain the rates of allowances. Further, SRC instructed Management
to submit proposals on productivity and performance-based bonus payment to SRC
for advice.

ii. However, Management did not provide documentary evidence of Salaries and
Remuneration Commission advice on the payment of annual bonus.

iii. The payment of the bonus was not sufficiently supported by the Board's resolutions
and Accounting Officers approval. lnstead, Management provided the performance
contract evaluation report which supported the payment of bonus during the financial
year 201812019.

iv. Section 8.14.5 of the WASREB Human Resource Policy and Procedures
Manual, 2020 lists annual bonus as one of the employee rewards. However, it does
not specify the nature, rules, and control measures of the reward scheme. Further,
it is not clear whether the nature and rules of the reward scheme was communicated
to all employees.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6. lmprest Management

6.1 lssuance of Multiple lmprest

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services expenditure
of Kshs.241 ,652,013 as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. lncluded
is domestic travel and subsistence of Kshs.30,618,084 and foreign travel of
Kshs.21 ,897,307. However, review of the imprest register revealed that, members of staff
were issued with multiple imprests before accounting for previous ones.

6.2 Unaccounted for lmprest

The statement of financial position reflects other currents assets balance of
Kshs.8,546,141 as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. The balance
includes staff debtors of Kshs.1,125,145, out of which Kshs.52,370 is in respect
to outstanding staff imprests which have not been accounted for, contrary to the
provrsions of Regulation 93(4)(b) of Public Finance Management (National Government)
Regulations, 2015 which requires that before issuing temporary imprests, the Accounting
Officer shall ensure that the applicant has no outstanding imprests.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report o/the Auditor-General on Wqter Services Regulotory Boordfor the yeor ended j0 June, 2023
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7. Unbudgeted Receipts of Donor Funds

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from other Government
agencies of Kshs.78,033,095 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. However,
the funds were not included in the Board's final approved budget. Further, there was no
evidence of notification to the Cabinet Secretary and the National Treasury regarding the
budgetary change arising from the additional revenue. This is contrary to provisions of
Section 47(1\ of the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations,
2015, which require such disclosure.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

8. Unbalanced Budget

Review of the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts revealed that the
Management prepared an unbalanced budget that reflects budgeted income of
Kshs.452,698,565 and expenditure of Kshs.448,033,095 resulting to an unexplained
variance of Kshs.4,665,470. This is contrary to Regulation 33(c) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the budget shall
be balanced.

9. Unapproved Board Retreat

The statement of financial performance reflects Board expense of Kshs.8,944,537 as
disclosed in Note '12 of the financial statements. The amount includes Kshs.634,387
incurred by five (5) board members during a board retreat held for three (3) days from
22 lo 24 January, 2023 al a lodge to plan on hiring of a substantive CEO. However, no
approval for the retreat was provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money incurred during the Board retreat
could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

10. Non-Preparation of Pre-Numbered Receipt Vouchers

The statement of financial performance reflects total revenue from non-exchange
transactions balance ot Kshs.427 ,209,601 as disclosed on Note 6 and 7 to the financial
statements. However, review of revenue records revealed that Management recorded
revenue receipts in the general ledger without creating pre-numbered rec,eipt vouchers,
and no such vouchers were provided for audit. This non-compliance with the stipulations
for preparing receipt vouchers is a violation of Regulation 104(1) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015.

ln the circumstances, mitigation of risks associated with collection and banking of all
revenue could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
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financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report I confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Weak Controls in Enforcement of Collection of Regulatory Levy

Review of records relating to licenses revenue revealed that Water Service Providers
were not compliant with the requirement of remitting a license operation fee of four
percent (4%) of turnover on or before the 1 5th day of each month to the regulator. Further,
Water Service Providers have not been complying with licensing conditions and prevailing
service level agreements. ln addition, Management has not implemented adequate
controls and policies in the collection of regulatory levies and have not demonstrated
efforts to enforce licensing conditions, thereby failing to fulfill its statutory obligation as
outlined in Section 72(1)(d) of the Water Act, 2016.

ln the circumstances, the Board may be losing realizable revenue from regulatory levies
due to non-compliance.

2. Lack ofan Approved Strategic Plan

Review of documents revealed that the Board lacks a current and approved strategic
plan. The strategic plan for the Board, which covered the period trom 2018-2022, had
lapsed one year ago. The absence of a current and approved strategic plan raises
concerns regarding the Board's capacity to effectively manage and align its activities with
its long-term objectives.

ln the circumstances, the Board's strategic plans and strategies for the next five (5) years
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that lplan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on Wqter Seruices Regulalory Boardlor theyear ended 30 June, 2023
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Board or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Board's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Anide 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
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an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in orderto give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Fund's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Board to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider nec€ssary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

21 March,2024
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Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023.

Revenue fiom non-exchonge honsocllons
6 78,033,09s s,380,870Tronsfers from olher government Agencies

403,503,779Licenses, Fees & Permits 7 349,17 6,506

427,209,601 408.884.649

Revenue exchonge lronsoclions
8 1,101,421 20,000

25,842 138.477

Sole of goods

Finonce income 9

1,127,263 't58,477

428,336,864 409,043,126

ll 133,324,711

folol revenue

Expenses
Employee costs

Boord expenses t2

148,120,998

8,944,537

Use of goods ond services 1,. 241,652,013

21 ,029,935

154,492,558

14 7,776,246 1,394,513

l5 1.595,893

408,089,687

2.351,321

3r 2.593,038

l0 3,s38,207

23,785,384

t6

30

Surplus/(Deflclt) for the peilod

Tronsfer to Mortgoge focility

Remission to Notionol Treosury

Other Goins/(Losses)

Nel Surplus lor lhe yeor

I3.SIAIEMENT OF FINANCIAT PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Depreciolion

Repoirs ond mointenonce

Tolol expenses

8,823,342

105,273,430

50,000.000

r6,585,025 26.981 ,571 .60

2200159 zg2gldS!4g

The noles set oul on poges 7 to 33 form on integrol port of these Finonciol
Stotements. The Finonciol Stolemenls set out on poges I lo 6 were sign on beholf
of the Boord of Directors by

CPA DAVIotiil.oono IPKCPA DN. JUTIUS IIUNGA

AG. CHIET EXECUTIVE OFfICER

tcPAK NO 854r

oAtE 11 11 la{

MANAGER IINANCE & ACCOUNTS CHAIRMAN

tcPAK NO 7983
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Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023.

Ascels

Currenl orsels

17 352.353,909 417.773,752Cosh ond cosh equivolenls

32.841.794l8 29,303,588Receivobles from Non- Exchonge Tronsoctions

7,7|,fi319 8,546.141Other cunent ossets

390,2r 3,638 4s8,326,UiTolol Curenl Arsetc

Non-cunenl osrels

20 42,235,467 36,842,212Property, Plont ond Equipment

36,U2,21242,235,457Tolol Non- Cunenl Asrelr

432,49,105 4?5,169,061Tolol Artel3

Uoblllllec

29,085,524 85,406,0r 9Trode ond Oiher Poyobles 21

23 215,419,764 204.855.085Refundoble Deposils from Customers

24 9,922,124 25,157,905Defened lncome

3r5,429,00t254,427,412Tolol Uobllllles

Nel Arseb

25 47,967,577 36,487,s77Copilol Fund

2,1&,m26 (8r 4, r 33)Revoluotion Reserve

140,792,47527 t30.868.249Accumuloled Surplus

u8n2l-ir3 179-1r,o$2Tolol Nel ossels

4r5Jrt-061432^4cJil!!'Tolol Nel Accelr ond Lloblllllec

14, SIATEMENT OF FINANCIAT POSIIION AS AI30 JUNE 2023

The Finqnciol Stolemenls sel out on poges I lo 6 were signed on beholf of the Boord

of Direclors by:

&='
D IIBAI tEtEITo JCPA DR. JUTIUS ITUNGA

AG. CHIEF EXECUNVE OFFICER

tcPAK NO 8541

oa'rr:lfl'vlu1

CPA DAVI

AAANAGER FINANCE & ACCOUNTS CHAIRiAAN

tcPAK NO 7t83
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Water Senices Regulatora Board
Annual Reports and Finencirl Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023.

I5.SIATEMENI OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR IHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Bolonce or ol I't July 2020 ai-4al.5z7 rroJoa-etl 4200n00 2Wn4A27

Revoluotion Reserve 600,000 6@.000

Amortisotion of revolued
ossels

(r,r70,000) (r,r 70,000)

Surplus/ (Deficit) for ihe
yeor

22,9ffi,966 22.988.966

Bolonce os ol 30tr June
2021

3A-&7-577 21il0r5,E1t Sriu-000 2532r1i25

Prior yeor odiustment 12,707) (2,7071

Amortisotion of revolued
ossets

(r .l 70,000) ( r ,l 70,000)

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the
yeor

28.291 .858 28,291,858

Bolonce os of 30h June
2U)2

aa-4p.l5tl u13,ctA7 2.4AA.000 2EO3it2-€4{

Copitol Fund -in -Kind I 1.480,000 I 1,480.000

Amorlisotion of revolued
ossets

(r , r 70,000) (r , r 70,000)

Prior yeor odjuslmenl on
revoluolion reserye

(2, r04, r33) (2.r04,r33)

Prior yeor odjustment
lt7.7t7,739.3O1 (17 .717 ,739 .30l,

Trode poyobles

Tronsfer to Morlgoge
Fund

(99.999.340], {99,999,34O)

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the
yeor

7,200,359 7,200,359

Bolonce or ol 30ih Junc
2C23

4Z,7fiAn rD.aag24t (8l]LIiSI u8-a2]lt3
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Watcr Scrvices Regulatory Board
Annual lleports and Financial Statements
l'or the year ended 30 Junc 2023,

I6.STAIEMENT OF CASHFTOWS FOR IHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Cosh flowr lrom operollng ocllvltle3

Recelpt3

5,380.8706 78.033,095Tronsfers trom other governmenls Agencies
349,176,506 403,503,7797Licenses, tees ond permits

20.000I l,5l1,421Sole of goods

138,477I 25,842Finonce income
3.538.207 8.823.342r0Olher goins/(loses)

417,856,468432,285,071Tolol recelpls

Poymenls
148,120,9?8 133.324,7 1InEmployee cosls

2\,029,93512 8,9 44,537Boord Expenses

| 54,492,558r3 241 ,652,O13Use ol goods ond services

2,351,321t.595,893l5Repoirs ond moinlenonce
50,000,000l6Tronsfers io Morlgoge locility
26,981,57230 r 6,585.025Gronls ond subsidies

388,180,097416,898,466Iolol poymenl3

Working copltol chonge3
1.536.702 5,929,347t8 &19(lncreose)/Decreose in Receivobles & oiher Cunenl Assels

104,975,87822 &24 145.7 65,816)lncreose/ (Decreose) in Poyobles

18,137, r 0525 (1s,235,78r )lncreose/ (Decreose) in Defened lncome

(59,464.89s) r29,042,330Cosh llow from chonges ln worklng copllol

158,728,70129 (44,078,290)Net corh llowr hom/(u3ed ln) operotlng ocllvllier

Coch flows from lnyesllng ocllvllle3
(28,65s.ss6)|s,373,6341Purchose ol PPE ond lntongible ossels

(49,4s1.921) 130,073,145Nel co3h ,lows trom/(u3ed ln) lnvestlng ocllvltles

Corh llowr lrom flnonclng ocflvltle3

{ r 0.450,925)lncreose in long term morlgoge focility
,2,707)lt7 ,7 t7 ,7391Decreose in revenue reserve

(45,0s8, r s3) 2,624,87 4Morigoge Account Funds Movement
(73,226,817) 2,622,167Nel cosh flowr lrom llnonclng Acflvllles

132,6?5,3121r22,67e,741)
Nel lncreore/(decreo3e) ln cosh &

Cosh equlvolenlr
342,347,338475,042,65017Cosh ond cosh equivolenls ol I July

352,363,909 475,042,650t7Co3h ond cosh equlvolentr ol 30 June
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Water Services Reguletory Boerd
Annual Reports and f inancial Statements
For the year cnded 30 June 2023.

! SIATEMENT OF CASHFTOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023 (contlnued)

The Finonciol Stolemenls set oul on poges I lo 6 were signed on beholf of the Boord

of Directors by:

W>.
ub KrBAr r.ErElIoCPA DR. JUI.IUS ITUNGA

AG, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFfICER

tcPAr No 8s4l

oiltEt lr.l141*

CPA DA

AAANAGET TINANCE T ACCOUNTS,

rcPAK r{o 7983

oatz l/>bt/ oe.r.: lt)y'q

CHAIRIAAN
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Water Services Reguletory Boerd
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

IT.SIAIEMENI OF COMPARISON OT BUDGET AND ACTUAT Ai,IOUNIS TOR IHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O,I3

z@tM2s2,ne, M2fM' 2tE2lzt8L{aflra
. On the regulotory fees/bvbs we were short ot the torgot by

6* dug to lhe dec[ned p€rfqtnonce of the wSPs during the

FY who ora ou. onv source of our instituliJ.lol revenue.

u9.176,W l?p,ffi.191) ?17370,m,m 370.CtD.0@Ucense, Fe€s ond

Pe.mils

78,033,O95 r@% . The Defefied lncorne rgloles to do.tofions unulilized lost FY

ond those Eceived durir€ the cuneht finonciol 
'€oa, 

whoso

conditions w6re rnel { Kshs.. 78,033,0951.

78.03.O95Defened lncome

100* This wqs the p.ofits on disposol of bonded nplor vohbles dudng

lhe FY

|.t27.263 1.171,2b3Miscelbneous

lncodre
tmr6 This is lhe reduclion in provisions for hode deblors/Receivobles.3.538.207 3,538,207Other goins/(lossesJ

9sil451.6rt565 l(,u75,07r lm,cs,1talIoad hcom. t7tr,qD.m

ExDarlar

lt 5,117 .1371 9t% . Ofl the comp€nsolions of employe65. the underutilizotion by

b witirin tha renit of l0% qc€eF,tobb levels. This $ros

coused by the reliemenli of 2 office6 ond rejgnot-ton of I

otficer dudng lh6 FY 202223

t 63,568, r 35 163.568.135 r 18, | 20.998Employee costs

ou3terily rneos!f,ei dech,red dt.rir,g lhe F\ n2./8.
24t.6520t3 .15.312917) 91%178.93r.865 78.033_095 2 .9U.9&Ure of goods ond

sgvices

M . The boord exr)enses wos underutifsed by 52* due to

disbohdrnent of the Boqd mid-wo,t lo the F\ fr218.
t8,5m,m a.9t,!.537 {9,sss,,16s)Boord E(pgnres r 8,5m,0m

9.372t39 372,139 t01% . The oveiulil'rzolion of provision fo( depreciotion cost5 by 4ri

wos cous€d by hiroduclion of n€,l./ moio. vehicles ocqu?ed

into ihe PPE.

9.m_00 9.0@.0@Other poyrnents -
Dep.ecictbn &

Repo? &

mointenonce

a/]t,0l]3,095 &,0.1r,4, (3r,t a3,ilo!) tlt63 r.(m,o(x, 76.03i1.015Iold .xp.ndrr.
23,7a5,te{surpll' lortha p.rlod

7



Weter Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30,2023.
Noles on lhe slolemenl of Comporlson ol Budgel ond Acluol Amounls os ol 30ttr June 2023

Performonce dlfference

l tlcense, tee3 ond Permlls

. On the regulotory fees/levies we were short of the torget by 6% due to the

declined performonce of the WSPs during the FY who ore our only source of

our institutionol revenue.

2. Defened lncome

. The Deferred lncome relotes to donotions unutilized losi FY ond those

received during the curreni finonciol yeor, whose conditions were mei ( Kshs..

78,033,095). The difference lKshs. 9,922,\24) wos conied fonrrord to next

finonciol yeor due to unmet conditions in the current finonciol yeor. (Preose

rcler to nole 26)

3. Mlscelloneour lncome

o This wos the profits on disposol of bonded motor vehicles during the FY

4. Other golns/(lo3ses

o This is ihe reduction in provisions for trode debtors/Receivobles.

5. Employee co3ts

o On ihe compensotions of employees. the underutilizotion by 9% is within ihe

remit of l0% occeptoble levels. This wos coused by the retirements of 2

officers ond resignotion of I officer in the course of the FY 2022123

6. Use of good3 ond servlces

o The underutilizotion of the budget by 67" wos due to lhe ousterity meosures

declored during the course of the FY 2022/23.

7. Boord Expen3es

o The boord expenses were underutilised by 52% dve 1o disbondment of ihe

Boord mid-woy to ihe FY 2022/23

8. Other poymenls - Depreclollon & Repolr & molnlenonce

o The overutilizolion of provision for depreciotion costs by 47" wos coused by

introduction of new molor vehicles ocquired inlo the PPE
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Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

I8. Noles to lhe tlnonclol Slolemenls.

l. Generol lnformollon

Woler Services Regulotory Boord (WASREB) is estoblished by ond derives its outhority ond

occountobility from Woter Act 201 6. WASREB is wholly owned by ihe Governmeni of Kenyo

ond is domiciled in Kenyo. WASREB's principol octivity is to protect the interests ond rights

of consumers in ihe provision of woter services.

2. Slolemenl of Compllonce ond Bosl! of Preporollon

The finonciol slotemenls hove been prepored on o historicol cosi bosis excepl for lhe

meosurement of re-volued omounts of certoin iiems of property, plont ond equipmenl,

morkeloble securities ond finonciol inslruments ot foir volue, impoired ossels ot their

eslimoted recoveroble omounls ond ocluoriolly determined liobilities ot their present

volue. The preporolion of finonciol stoiements in conformity with lnternotionol Public

Sector Accounling Stondords (IPSAS) ollows the use of estimotes ond ossumplions. lt olso

requires monogement to exercise judgement in ihe process of opplying WASREB'S

occounting policies. The oreos involving o higher degree of judgment or complexily. or

where ossumptions ond estimotes ore significont to the finonciol slotemenls, ore disclosed

in Nole 5 of these finonciol stotements.

The finonciol stolemenis hove been prepored ond presented in Kenyo Shillings, which is

ihe functionol ond reporling currency of WASREB.

The finonciol siotements hove been prepored in occordonce with the PFM Act, the Stote

Corporotions Acl ond lnlernotionol Public Seclor Accounling Stondords (IPSAS). The

occouniing policies odopted hove been consistently opplied to oll the yeors presenied'

9



Water Serryices Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

Noles lo lhe Flnonclol Slolemenls (Conllnued)

3. Adopllon of Nelv ond Revlsed Slondords

i. New ond omended srondords ond lntetprcldlions ln lssue effecliye ln the yeor

ended 30 June 2023.

IPSASB defened the opplicotion dote of siondords from lst Jonuory 2022 owing to

Covid 19. This wos done to provide entities with lime to effectively opply the

stondords. The deferrol wos sei for I't Jonuory 2023.

ii. New ond omended slondords ond lnletpteloflons In lssue bul nol yel efrecllve tn

lhe yeq ended 30 Jvne 2023.

Appllcoble: I't Jonuory 2023:

The objeciive of IPSAS 4l is to estoblish principles for the

finonciol reporting of finonciol ossets ond liobilities ihol will

present relevont ond useful informotion to users of finonciol

stotements for their ossessment of the omounts, timing ond

uncertointy of on Entily's fuiure cosh flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of finonciol slotements wiih more

useful informotion thon IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying o single clossificotion ond meosurement

model for finonciol ossets thot considers lhe

chorocteristics of the osset's cosh flows ond the

oblective for which the osset is held;

. Applying o single forword-looking expected credii

Ioss model thot is opplicoble to oll finonciol

instruments subject to impoirment tesiing; ond

. Applying on improved hedge occounting model

ihot broodens the hedging orrongements in scope

of the guidonce. The model develops o strong link

between on Enlity's risk monogement strolegies ond

the occounting treotmenl for instruments held os

port of the risk monogement strotegy.

lPsAs 4l:
Finonciol

lnstruments

t0



Water Senices Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the ear ended June 30, 2023.

rPsAs 42:

Sociol Benefils

Appllcoble: ltt Jonuory 2023

The objective of ihis Stondord is to improve the relevonce,

foithful representotiveness ond comporobilily of the

informotion ihot o reporling Entiiy provides in its finonciol

stolemenls obout sociol benefits. The informotion provided

should help users of lhe flnonciol stotements ond generol-

purpose finonciol reports ossess:

(o) The nolure of such sociol benefits provided by ihe

Entity.

(b) The key feotures of the operolion of ihose sociol benefit

schemes; ond

(c) The impoct of such sociol benefits provided on lhe

Entity's finonciol performonce, finonciol position ond cosh

flows.

Amendments

lo Other IPSAS

resulting from

TPSAS 4t,

Finonciol

lnslruments

Appllcoble: lsl Jonuory 2023:

o) Amendments to IPSAS 5, 1o updole ihe guidonce

reloied to the componenis of borrowing costs which

were inodvertenlly omilted when IPSAS 4'l wos

issued.

b) Amendmenis lo IPSAS 30, regording illuslroiive

exomples on hedging ond credit risk which were

inodvertenlly omitted when IPSAS 4l wos issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to updoie lhe guidonce

for occounting for finonciol guoronlee controcls

which were inodvertently omilied when IPSAS 41

wos issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to updote the guidonce on

clossifying finonciol instruments on initiol odoplion of

occruol bosis IPSAS which were inodvertenlly omitied

when IPSAS 4l wos issued.

ll



Water Services Regulatory Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the ear ended June 30, 2023.

IPSAS 44: Non-

Currenl Assets

Held for Sole

ond

Appllcoble lrt Jonuory 202j

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Finonciol lnformotion obout the

Generol Government Secfor.

Amendmenls to refer io the lolesl System of Notionol

Accounts (SNA 2008).

o /PSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deleies the term composite sociol security benefils os

it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Flnonclol lnshumenls: Recognltlon ond

Meosuremenl

Stondord no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS hondbook

os it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is opplicoble

from lst .Jonuory 2023.

Appllcoble ltt Jonuory 2025

The slondord sets out the principles for the recognition,

meosurement, presentolion, ond disclosure of leoses. The

objective is to ensure thoi lessees ond lessors provide

relevont informolion in o monner thot foilhfully represents

those tronsoctions. This informotion gives o bosis for users of

finonciol stotements to ossess the effect thol leoses hove

on the finonciol position, finonciol performonce ond

coshflows of on Entity.

The new stondord requires entilies to recognise, meosure

ond present informotion on right of use ossets ond leose

liobilities.

Appllcoble l.t Jonudry 2025

The Stondord requires,

Assets thol meet the criterio to be clossified os held for sole

1o be meosured ol the lower of corrying omount ond foir

Other

improvements

to IPSAS

IPSAS 43

t2



Water Services Regulatory Botrrd
Annual lleports and Financial Statements
For lhe year ended June 30' 2023.

iii. Eorly odopllon of srondords

WASREB did not eorly - odopt ony new or omended stondords in yeor 2022/2023.

4. Summory ol Slgnlflconl Accounllng Pollcles

(o) Revenue recognlllon

i) Revenue from non-exchonge llontoclions

tevles. flnes ond penollles

The entily recognizes revenues from levies, penollies, ond fees when the event

occurs ond the ossel recognition criterio ore mel. To lhe extent thoi there is o

reloted condilion ottoched thot would give rise to o liobility to repoy lhe omounl,

deferred inCome is reCOgnized insteod of revenue. Olher nOn-exchonge revenues

ore recognized when it is proboble thot the future economic benefits or service

polenliol ossocioted with the osset will flow lo the eniily ond the foir volue of the

ossei con be meosured reliobly.

Tronsfers from olher govelnmenl entllles

Revenues frOm non-exchonge trOnsoctiOns with olher government entities ore

meosured ol foir volue ond recognized on obtoining conlrol of the osset (cosh,

goods, services ond property) if the konsfer is free from conditions ond it is proboble

thot the economic benefits or service poteniiol reloled to the ossel will flow to lhe

entity ond con be meosured reliobly.

ii) Revenue lrom exchonge lrongocllons

Mlrcelloneous lncome

These include penolties chorged, sole of tender ond inlerest income which is

occrued using lhe effective yield method. The effective yield discounls eslimoted

volue less costs to sell ond ihe depreciotion of such ossets

to ceose ond:

Assets thot meet the criterio to be clossified os held for sole

to be presented seporotely in the stotement of finonciol

position ond the resulls of disconiinued operolions to be

presented seporolely in the stotement of finonciol

performonce.

Discontinued

Operotions
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fulure cosh receipts through the expecled life of the finonciol osset to ihot osset's

nel corrying omount. The method opplies lhis yield 1o the principol outstonding to

determine inierest income eoch period.

(b)Budget lnformollon

Ihe onnuol budget is prepored on the occruol bosis, thol is, oll plonned costs ond

income ore presented in o single stotemenl to delermine the needs of the entity. As

o result of the odoption of the occruol bosis tor budgeting purposes, ihere ore no

bosis, timing or entity differences thot would require reconciliotion belween the

ocluol comporoble omounts ond the omounts presented os o seporote oddiiionol

finonciol stolement in ihe stotement of comporison of budget ond octuol omounls.

(c)Toxer

Cunenl lncome lox

Cunent income tox ossets ond liobilities for the current period ore meosured ol the

omount expected to be recovered from or poid to lhe loxotion outhorilies. The tox

roles ond lox lows used to compute the omount ore those thot ore enocied or

subslontively enocted, ot lhe reporling dote in the oreo where the Enlity operotes

ond generotes toxoble income.

Current income tox reloting to items recognized directly in nei ossets is recognized in

net ossets ond not in the stotement of finonciol performonce. Monogemenl
periodicolly evoluotes positions token in the tox returns with respect to. situotions in

which opplicoble tox regulotions ore subject to interpretotion ond esloblishes

provisions where oppropriote.

(d) Property, plonl ond equlpmenl

All property, plont ond equipment ore stoted ol cost less occumuloted depreciotion

ond impoirment losses. Cost includes expenditure thol is directly ottributoble lo the

ocquisition of the items. When significont porls of property, plont ond equipment ore

required to be reploced of intervols, the entity recognizes such ports os individuol

ossels wilh specific useful lives ond depreciotes them occordingly. Likewise, when o

mojor inspeclion is performed, its cost is recognized in the corrying omount of the plont

ond equipment os o replocement if the recognition criterio ore sotisfied. All other

repoir ond mointenonce costs ore recognized in surplus or deficit os incurred. Where
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on ossei is ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsoction for nil or nominol considerotion

the osset is initiolly meosured of its foir volue.

(e) lnlonglble ossels

lntongible ossets ocquired seporotely ore initiolly recognized oi cost. The cost ot

intongible ossels ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsoction is theirfoirvolue oi the dote

of the exchonge. Following initiol recognition, intongible osseis ore corried ot cost less

ony occumuloled omorlizolion ond occumuloted impoirmenl Iosses. lnlernolly

generoted inlongible ossets, excluding copitolized developmenl costs, ore not

copitolized ond expenditure is reflecled in surplus or deficit in the period in which the

expendilure is incurred.

The useful life of lhe intongible ossets is ossessed os either finite or indefinite.

(f) Reseorch ond developmenl cosls

The Entity expenses reseorch cosls os incuned. Development costs on on individuol

projecl ore recognized os intongible ossets when the Entity con demonstrote:

! The lechnicol feosibility of compleling lhe osset so lhot the ossel will be ovoiloble

for use or sole

) lis intention to complete ond ils obility to use or sell lhe osset

D How the osset will generote future economic benefits or service potentiol

> The ovoilobility of resources lo complete lhe ossel

! The obility to meosure reliobly the expenditure during development

Following initiol recognition of on osset, the osset is corried of cosi less ony

occumuloted omorlizotion ond occumuloled impoirment losses. Amorlizoiion of lhe

ossel begins when development is compleie ond the osset is ovoiloble for use. lt is

omortized over the period of expected future benefit. During ihe period of

development, the osset is tested for impoirment onnuolly with ony impoirment losses

recognized immediotely in surplus or deficil.

(g) Provlrlonr

Provisions ore recognized when the Enlity hos o present obligoiion (legol or

construciive) os o result of o posl event, it is proboble thoi on oulflow of resources
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embodying economic benefits or service potenliol will be required to settle the

obligoiion ond o relioble estimote con be mode of the omount of the obligotion.

Where the Entity expects some or oll of o provision to be reimbursed, for exomple,

under on insuronce controct, the reimbursement is recognized os o seporote osset

only when the reimbursement is virtuolly certoin.

The expense reloting to ony provision is presented in the stotement of finonciol

performonce net of ony reimbursement.

(h) Conllngent llobllltles

The Entity does not recognize o contingenl liobility, but discloses detoils of ony

contingencies in the notes to the finonciol stolements, unless the possibility of on

oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiol is remoie.

(l) Conllngenl ossels

The Enlity does not recognize o contingent ossel, but discloses detoils of o possible

ossei whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurence of one or

more uncertoin future evenis nol wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to

the finonciol slotements. Contingent ossets ore ossessed continuolly to ensure thot

developments ore oppropriotely reflected in the finonciol stolements. lf it hos become
virtuolly certoin thot on inflow of economic benefits or service potentiol will orise ond

the osset's volue con be meosured reliobly, lhe osset ond the reloted revenue ore

recognized in ihe finonciol slotements of the period in which the chonge occurs.

[) Nolure ond purpose of ]e3erveg

WASREB creoles ond mointoins reserves in terms of specific requirements. WASREB

mointoins both copitol ond revenue reseryes.

(k)Chonges ln occountlng pollcler ond esllmoles

WASREB recognizes the effects of chonges in occounting policy relrospeciively.

The effects of chonges in occounling policy ore opplied prospectively if

retrospective opplicotion is improcticol.

(l) Employee beneflls

Rellremenl benefll plons

WASREB provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plons

ore post-employmenl benefii plons under which on entity poys 20% fixed

contributions bosed on the employees' bosic solories ond the employee coniributes
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10% of their bosic solories inlo o seporote fund, ond will hove no legol or constructive

obligoiion to poy further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient ossets to

poy oll employee benefits reloting to employee service in the cuneni ond prior

periods. The contribuiions io fund obligotions for lhe poyment of retiremeni benefils

ore chorged ogoinsl income in the yeor in which they become poyoble'

(m) Reloled porlles

WASREB regords o reloled porty os o person or on enliiy with ihe obiliiy to exert

control individuolly or jointly, or to exercise significont inftuence over ihe Eniiiy, or

vice verso. Members of key monogemenl ore regorded os reloted porlies ond

comprise the boord direclors, the choirperson, the cEo, senior monogers, Ministry

of Woler ond Sonitoiion, WSDP, UNICEF ond ESAWAS.

(n) Cosh ond cosh equlvolenls

cosh ond cosh equivolents comprise cosh on hond ond cosh ot bonk, shortJerm

deposits on coll ond highly liquid inveslments with on originol moturity of three

months or less, which ore reodily converiible to known omounts of cosh ond ore

subject lo insignificont risk of chonges in volue. Bonk occouni bolonces include

omounls held ot lhe Centrol Bonk of Kenyo ond oi vorious commerciol bonks ol

lhe end of the finonciol yeor. For the purposes of these finonciol sioiements, cosh

ond cosh equivolenls olso include shorl term deposits, cosh ond cosh ol bonk.

(o) Comporollve ffgures

where necessory comporolive figures for the previous finonciol yeor hove been

omended or reconfigured to conform to the required chonges in preseniolion.

(p)Subsequenl evenls

There hove been no evenis subsequenl io the finonciol yeor end with o significont

impoci on the finonciol siotements for lhe yeor ended 30th June 2023.

5. Slgnlflconl Judgmenls ond 3ourcet of erllmollon uncerlolnty

The preporolion of WASREB's finonciol stotements in conformity wiih IPSAS requires

monogement lo moke judgmenls, esiimoies ond ossumptions thot offect the

reported omounts of revenues, expenses, ossets ond liobilities, ond the disclosure of

contingent liobilities, ot the end of the reporting period. However, uncertointy obout

lhese ossumplions ond eslimoies could result in outcomes thol require o moieriol

odjustment io the corrying omouni of the osset or liobility offected in fulure periods.
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o) Provlllonr lor bod debls

Trode receivobles ore recognized ond conied ot originol omount less ony

unrecoveroble omount ond lhe generol provision for bod debts ot l0% of the

omount oulstonding ond specific provision ot 507o.

b) Cunency

The finonciol stotements ore presented in Kenyo Shillings (Kshs).

c) Useful llves ond rellduol volue

The useful lives ond residuol volues of ossets ore ossessed using the following

indicotors to inform potentiol future use ond volue from disposol:

i. The condiiion of the osset bosed on the ossessment of experts employed by

the Entity.

ii. The noture of the osset, its susceptibility ond odoptobility to chonges in

technology ond processes.

iii. The noture of the processes in which the osset is deployed.

iv. Avoilobility of funding to reploce the osset.

v. Chonges in the morket in relolion to the osset
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908,3 r3ESAWAS Gronts
5,380,8703,672,985UNICEF Gronts-Defened lncome

73,45't,797WSDP Gronts-Defened lncome
5.380.87078.033.095

NOIES IO IHE FINANCIAI SIATEAiENIS (Contlnued)

6. Tronslers lrom Olher Governmenl Enllllec

7. Levler, Flner ond Penolllet

8. Sole of goods

9. Flnoncc lncome

10. Olher Golnr/lo$cr

328.580.350 401 ,023,882Regulotory Levy
3,199,760 r,500,000License Applicotion fees

979,89716,556,396License Fees
840,000Penollies

llo3-tmJzr34uzi-50nIolol

20,0001,101,421Profit on disposol
2o-o0allollt2lTotol

75,016lnsuronce Compensotion
25,842 63,461lnterest lncome

13/,.,47725,U2Tolol

8,823,3423,538,207Reduction in provision of debtors
3.iiilg20z 1,1;11,92Tolol Olher Golns / ([ocrer)
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NOTES IO THE tlNANClAt STATEMENTS (Conllnued)
I l. Employec cosls

12. Boord ex en3e3

13. Use ol Goods ond servlces

211,727

74.342

Solories ond woges 81,644,013 72,571,749
Housing benefits ond ollowonces 20.642.000 18,986,000

Performonce ond other bonuses 3,058,636 2,608,479
Other employee reloted costs 9,833,000 8,825,000
Trovel, motor cor ollowonces 9,354,000 8,472,000
Contributions to pensions 12,488,171 10,210,245
Grotuity 4,540,052 5.779,336
Leove Allowonce 6.551 .126 5.871.902
Employee costr r48J20lt8
No of employees 49

It3324.Zr.1
45

Choirpersons Honororio 1,N9,O32 613,214
Sitting & Accommodotion Allowonces 7,935,505 20,416,721
Iolol Eoord remunerollon 9tjc-13.t 2L02t135

17,952,105 15,621 ,397Advertising & Publicity

Audit fees 464.000

Conferences expenses

464,OO0

12,491 ,160 r 2,350.889

Consulting fees 98,450,507 15,450.-?40

Computer Expense 4,070,965 4,529,238

lnsuronce expenses 18,438,437 14,229,565

lnternet expenses 1,664,627 2,r83,r60

Printing expenses 3,780,446 r,348,500

Rentol expenses 16.87 5.077 16,67 6,527

Bonk Chorges & Other Operoting Expenses 236,959

Telecommunicotion expenses

Copocity building expenses

290,699

3,753,2.74

Domestic irovel ond subsistence ollowonces 30,618,084 36,658,287

20
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14. lollon

'15. Repohr ond Molntenonce

l6.Tronrfer lo M o Focll

17, Corh ond coth e ulvolenh

14,855,65021 ,897,307Foreign trovel ond subsislence ollowonces

2,531,5533,448,879Fuel ond oil expenses

2,766,391 315,220Subscription expenses

4,157,3373,508,096Office running Expenses

524,039Covid l9 lntervention expenses

7r 5,000895,000Sloff Welfore

50,000Corporote sociol responsibility

24r.rE2OXl 154A92,5s9Tolol Ure o, Goodi ond rervlcer

410,246324,706Furnilure ond Fittin
984,2572,533,606Com uler ond E UI ment

4,917,934Motor vehicles
ztfi2at UultixlTolol

1,595,893 2,351,321Motor vehicle moinlenonce

50,000,000Tronsfer to Mortgoge Focility

262,807,375 33r ,108,881Nolionol Bonk of Ken o Account No 010010321103@
755,978 755,978Notionol Bonk of Ken o Account No 0l@10321 10301

21,725,9450Account No 010710321 10300)Notionol Bonk of Kenyo (

51 ,584,544 37,183,476Kenyo Commerciol Bonk (Accounl No I I 17496953)

23,493,4363t,640,602Cooperolive Bonk of Kenyo (Account No 0l 
.l 

36 1 60928501 )

3,506,0365,575,410Cooperotive Bonk of Kenyo (Account No 0l 136160928600)

An_ilx6:l35234310tIolol corh ond co3h equlvolenh
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Curenl recelvobles

Trode debtors 58,607 ,17 5 65,683,589

[ess: lmpolrmenl ollowonce (29.303.587) (32.84r.795)

29,303,588 32,841,794

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Conllnued)

l S. Recelvobles lrom non-exchonge lronsocllons

Totol cunenl recelvobles

19. Olher Cunenl Assels

Stoff deblors

Tolol

Reconclllotlon of lmpolrmenl of recelvoble3

As ot I 't JulV 2021 41 ,665,13632,841 ,795

Reduction in provision for impoirment (3,s38,207) (8,823,34r )

lmpolrmenl Allowonce 2rl0il5t8 32-9ilf,95

275,004Cor loon Fociliiy

Prepoid lnsuronce 7,420,996

&5!trLr41

1,125,145

6,997,020

z.1LUl03

439,279

22
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NOIES IO THE FINANCIAL STAIEI ENTS (Conllnued)

20.Propedy, Plonl ond EqulPmenl

20. (b) Property plont orid Equipmenl includes the following ossets thot ore fullY

deprecioted:

KrhcKshs KshsKshr(shsCosl
64,O80,72033,322,760 1,326,17010,597,7i018,834,000As ol 3Ot'June 2021

28,655.55611,326,17Ol,5,057,056334,99924,589,67 |Addilions

92,736,27638,379,81610,932,78943,423,671Asol 3Oh June2022
15,853,5344,965,091I1,4ti0,000 408,543Addilions
(s,094,000)(s,094,000)Disposol

104,495,910I 1,341.332 43,U4,90749,809,671As ot 30ttt June 2023

Depreclollon ond lmpolrmenl
(53,329,551)Nil(e,w,246) (31,189,'140)(rs,099,865)As ot 3(F June 2021

(r,394,5r3)Nit.984,267l,Nit
'410,2461Chorge for the yeor

(l,r70,000)Nit NirNit(r,r70,000)Amortizolion
(55,894,064)(32,173,707) NI(e,450,492)(r4,26r.86s)As ol 3Oh Jvne 2022

17,776,2461Nit(2,s33,606)14,917,9341 1324,706\Chorge for lhe yeor

(r,r70,000)NitNil Nit(r , r 70,000)Amorlizotion
(2, r 04,1 33)NitNitNit(2,r04,r33)Prior yeor odjuslmenl on

omorlizolion

4,684,0004,684,000Tronsferred to
Disposol Account

(62,260,43)Nil(34,707,3r 3)19,77s,198)117 ,777,932)As ol 3Oh June 2023

Nel book Voluer

42,235,4678,637,5941,566.13432,031,739As ql 3Oh June 2023

36,U2,2121,82,297 6,206,10929,153,806As ol 3On June 2022

10,751,1691,326,1701,557,54 2,133,3205,734,135Ar ot 30n Junc 2021

34,400,048Motor vehicles
20,467,331 .70Computers ond reloted equipment

7 ,478,160Office equipmenl, furniture ond fittings
62,3/,5,539.70Tolol
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Trode poyobles (remission to TNT Note 32) 16,585,025 26,981,572

Audit fees 464,464 928,464

Mortgoge focility provision 50,000,000

Grotuity 12,034,798 7,494,7 46

Stoff welfore 1,237 |,237

Iolol lrode ond olher poyoblcs 29.085.524 85./rc6.01?

NOTES IO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Contlnucd)

2l.Trode ond Olher Poyobles

2l!. Cunenl provlrlons

Tolol provlslonr or ol 30-06-2023

23. Refundoble Deposlls ond Prepoymenls from Cuslomers

24. Defcned lncome

Boloncc B lD (Ol lil / 20221 928,464 7,194,746 32,691,7?5

464,000 4,540,O52Additionol provisions

Provisions utilized (928.000) (3,388,207)

fi4-4d4 u,o3dt?l 2rt03-r88

Performonce Guorontee 215,419,764 204,865,08s

Iolol hode ond olher poyobler 215.119.761 204.865.085

UNICEF 3,606,942 3,431,960
Woter Sonitotion Development Proiect (WSDP) 5t,725,852 2t,725,945
Notionol Woler Supply & Horvesting 8,997,0@

61329.791Corled Forword
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NOTES TO IHE tlNANClAt STAIEMENTS (Contlnued)

Ihe Delened lncome Movemcnl lr ot followr:

25.Co llol Fund

26. Revoluollon Rererve

2T.Accumuloled Surplug

2021/2022
Krhr

202212023
(rhr

7,020,80025,157,905Bolonce brouohl Forword
25,157,90564,329,794Addilions
32,178,70589,487,6r9(o) Sub-Iotql- Recclph

5,380,8703,672,985Tronsfers lo lncome Slolement-UNICEF
73,451,797Tronsfers to lncome Slolemenl-WSDP

908,313Tronsf ers to lncome SlotemenIESAWAS
s.380.87078,03ir,0t5b Sub-Iolol-Tronrf.rt
1.639.9301.532.480Ic) Olher Tronsfers

25.157 .9059.92:2.121(d) Bolonce Conled Fomord (o-b-c)

36,487,57736,487,577Brouqht Forword
I 1,480,000Motor Vehicle A/C

il.QtsuqnfianCorled Forword

3.630,0002,460,0@Openlng Boloncc

11, r 70.000) (r , r 70,000)Amorlizolion in lhe yeor

(2,r04,r33)

G14fi3r 2^&0n00

Prior yeor odjuslmenl on revoluolion reserve

Bolonce Conied Forword

213,095,E18.00241,9,969.&Accumuloled Surplus B/F

55,273,/{30.0023,785,84Deficit /Surplus for the yeor

117,717,739.3Ol, 12,707lPrior yeor odjustment

247,168,669.1O 268,366,s4r.00Iolol
26,981 ,571.60l,(r 6,58s,025)Remission lo The Notionol Treosury (Notc 32) 2021123

(9e,999,3401Tronsfer to Morlgoge Fund

2$3,d.9!rnar 30.868.249.10Accumuloled Surplus C/F
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1.1

NOTES IO THE tlNANClAt STATEMENTS (Conllnued)

28. Reloled Porly Tronsocllons

29,Cosh Generoled from Operotlonr

30.Surplur Remlsslon

ln occordonce wilh Seclion 219 (2) ot the Public Finonciol Monogemenl Act regulotions,
regulolory enlities sholl remil inlo Consolidoted Fund, ninety per centum (9O%l ot its surplus funds
reported in lhe oudited finonciol slolements ofter lhe end of eoch finonciol yeor. ln line wilh this

legol requirement WASREB will remit Kshr. I 6,585,025 for lh e FY 202212023 ofter odjustment for costs
incuned on ocquisilion of PPE.

The Surplus Remission hos been compuled os follows:

WASREB's CEO & Senior Monogement 22,083,550 2l ,l 18,440

Boord of Direclors 8,944,537 21,O29,935
ESAWAS-Belindo Goles 8,997,O@
Ministry of Woler ond Sonitotion (WSDP) 51,725,852 21.725,852
UNICEF 3,606,942 3,431,960
Iolol 95,357,881 67,306,187

SurDluc tor lhe ycor before lox 2,118,73? 28,291,858
Adlurlcd lor: 0
Depreciotion 7 .77 6,246 r ,394.5r3
Wo*lng Copllol odjuttmcnh 0

lncreose in receivobles 1.521.372 5,929,347
lncreose in poyobles 14s,765,8161, 104,975,878
lncreose in Defened lncome (r 5,23s,78r ) r 8, r 37, 105

Ncl corh flow ftom operollng octlvllles (11,O77,s6s1 1$,728,701

Surplus for the period 23,801,439 55,273,430.00

Less: Allowoble deductions by NT 15,373,6341 (28,65s,446.@l

Ncl cllglble for remlsslon 18,427,805
90% Computotion (lncluded in Stotement
of Finonciol Performonce) r 6,585,024.50

26,617,98/..@

23,956,185.60
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NOTES TO THE tINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conllnued)

Surplur Remlsslon Poyoble

31. tlnonclol Rlsk Monogemenl

WASREB's oclivities expose ii lo o voriety ot finonciol risks including credil ond liquidity risks ond

effecls of chonges in foreign currency. The Boord's overoll risk monogemenl progromme focuses

on unpredictobility of chonges in lhe business environmenl ond seeks to minimise the polenliol

odverse effect of such risks on its performonce by setling occeploble levels of risk. The Boord does

nol hedge ony risks ond hos in ploce policies io ensure lhot credit is only exlended to cuslomers

wilh on esloblished credii hislory. The Boord's finonciol risk monogemenl objeciives ond policies

ore detoiled below:

o) Llquldlty rltk monogemen

Ullimole responsibilily for liquidily risk monogemenl resls wiih lhe enlity's directors, who hove

built on oppropriote liquidily risk monogement fromework for lhe monogement of the enlity's

shorl. medium ond longJerm funding ond liquidity monogemenl requiremenls. The Boord

monoges liquidity risk lhrough conlinuous moniloring of forecosls ond ocluol cosh flows.

17 ,7 t7 ,739 .30.t4,699,310.90Poyoble ot lhe beginning ol lhe yeor 121/221

26,981,571.6016,585,02{.50
Chorge for the yeor 122/23l, bosed on ld drofl
of lhe FS 2022123

nil44,6t9,310.90Poid during the yeor
44,699,310.9016,585,024.50Poyobla al .nd ol lh. yeol

Ar ol 30 June 2023
464,464464,464464,@OProvisions

12,O34.79812,O34,798Employee benefil obligotion
12,?63,26212,499,262464,mOTolol

Ar ot 30 June 2022
928,464464,464464,000Provisions

5,779,3365,779,336Employee benefil obligotion
6,707,8006.243.800464,000Tolol

As ol 30 June 2021
1,856,4641,392,464464,000Provisions
3,426,6103,426,61OEmployee benefil obligolion
5,283,074464,mO 4,819,O74Tolql
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b) Copltol Rlsk Monogemenl

The objeciive of the Boord's copilol risk monogement is 1o sofeguord lhe Boord's obility

to continue os o going concern. The entity copitol siruclure comprises of the following

f unds:

32. Conllngent tlobllllles

The boord hos ongoing coses which might offect the finonciol stolements in future

(814,133) 2,460,000Revoluotion reserve
241 ,384,969Retoined eorninqs 130,868,249

47,967,577 36,487,577Copitol reserve
\ 49,999,340Mortgoqe Funds

Tolol funds 330,141,221 280,332,546
254,427,412 290,271,104Tolol borowings
447,422,782 475,042,650Less: cosh ond bonk bolonces

i92,995,3701 (184,771,5461Nel debi/(excess cosh ond cosh equivolents)
58.4% 66.1%Georlng
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ProJecl lltle ProJecl Number Donor Perlod/
durollon

Donor
commllme

nt (Kshs)

Seporole
donol

reporllng
requlred

os per lhe
donor

ogreeme
nl

fies/No)
Woler ond
Sonitotion
Developme
nt Projecl
{WSDP}

P156634-
WASREB-I34249-
CS-QCBS

World
Bonk

l8
monihs

5t,725,852 No

ESAWAS.
Belindo
Gotes

6 monihs 8,997,000 No Yes

UNICEF UNICEF 6 monihs 3,602,942 No Yes

APPENDIX I: PROJECIS IMPI.EMENTED BY IHE ENTITY

Consolldo
led ln
lhese

llnonclol
slolemenl

J

(Yes/No,)

Yes t
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APPENDIX II: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NAME: WATER SERVICES REGULATORY BOARD

BREAK DOWN OF TRANSFERS FROM THE MINISTRY OF WATER & SANITATION

Bank Statement
Date

2022n023 2021n022

Kshs Kshs

Ministry of Water and Sanitation-

WSDP t3-04-2023 5t,725,852 21,725,852

Water Sanitation Development

Project-ESAwAS

3t-10-2022 8,997,000

UNICEF 08-03-2023 3,602,942 3,43 1,960

ffi,ltrBtffiffi
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APPENDIX III: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Reference
No of the
external
audit
reltort

Issue/observation from the auditor Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

Timeframe

lncomplete Property,
Equipment

Plsnt and

The statement of financial position reflects
property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.l0,75l, 169 as disclosed in Note 20. A
review ofthe Board's assets established that,
the Board had operationalized five (SAP,
EDMS, SMART HRS, WASREB leave
system
& Maji Data) software in various aspects of
its operations. The fair values of these
software had not been recognized as

lntangible Assets in line with paragraph 43
and 74 of lntemational Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board (IPSAS) 31.
Further. tangible assets at a cost of
Kshs.4,272,260 are included under
computers and equipment asset class and not
as an intangible asset in line with the
provisions of I PSAS 31.
Under these circumstances, it was not
possible to ascertain the accuracy and
completeness of the Board's assets
amountins to Kshs. 10.751. 169

The listed software is
third pany owned and we
pay their annual
maintenance/license
costs.
The board will endeavour
to record and disclose
any new and owned
software as intangible
asset accordingly in the
financial statement.

Resolved

2 lnconsistencies on Basis of Recognition of
Receivables from Non-Exchange
Transactions

The Board adopted revenue recognition
criteria where revenue from levies, penalties
and fees are recognized when they are
received as disclosed in Note 4(a) of
summary of significant accounting policies.
However, the adoption of this revenue
recognition criteria. contradicts clause I l(2)
ofthe licensing guidelines for Water Service
Providers (WSPs) which postulates that the
license fees to be paid under this license is a
one-off license fee of 0.1 % of last audited
tumover to be paid with issuance of license
and a license operation fee of 4o4 to be paid
by the l5th day ofeach month, which makes
revenue recognizable at this point based on
the asset recognition criteria issued under
IPSAS 2i. This inconsistency in adoption of
IPSAS 23 has led to the non-recognition of

The board changed its
receivables policy in the
FY 2019/2020 during
which some of the
receivables had been
recognized under income
from non-exchange
transactions and refl ected
in the Statement of
Changes in Net assets.

Non-exchange
transactions are
transactions that are not
exchange transactions. In
a non-exchange
transaction. an entity
either receives value
from another entity
without directly giving
approximately equal
value in exchange, or
gives value to another

Resolved
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Reference
No of the
external
audit
report

Issue/observation from the auditor Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

Timeframe

significant debt obligations owed to the
Board by various (WSPs).
Consequently, the accuracy and
completeness of Kshs.42, 155,677 reported
as trade debtoB in lhe financial statements.

entity without directly
receiving approximately
equal value in exchange.
An entity will recognize
an asset arising from a

non-exchange
transaction when it gains
control of resources that
meet the definition of an

asset and satisfy the
recognition criteria
An inflow of resources
from a non-exchange
transaction. other than
services in-kind, that
meets the definition ofan
asset shall be recognized
as an asset when. and
only when: (a) lt is
probable that the future
economic benefits or
service potential
associated with the asset

will flow to the entity;
and (b) The fair value of
the asset can be measured
reliably. Therefore, the
board only gain control
of the asset when we
receive it from wsp. The
Board is still in a

transition period
absorbing the already
recognized receivables
until they are fully
utilized.

J U nsupported Board Expenses

The statement of financial performance
reflects board expenses of
Kshs.17,752.058 and as disclosed in Note
13. However, supporting evidence in the
form ofevidence oftravel. mileage claims.
attendance registers and/ or joumal
adjusting vouchers for expenditure
amounting to Kshs.12,104,936 was not
provided for audit.

The Board expenses have
been fully supported and
the personal log books.
attendance registers and
basis of payment of
mileage claims is
available for your audit
verification.

The journal entries
relating to board
expenses adjustments are

Resolved
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Reference
No of the
external
rudit
report

Issue/observation from the auditor Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

Timeframe

The Management also failed to avail the
circulated notice and attendance register
for a virtual full board meeting held on the

l0 July. 2020 and for which allowances
amounting to Kshs.236,574 were paid out
under payment voucher number 008
contrary to Regulation 104 of the Public
Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 201 5

Consequently, the accuracy and
completeness of the expenditure of
Kshs.l2,l04,9i6 could not be confirmed.
During the year under review. However, the
funds were not included in the board's final;
approved budget. Further, there was no
evidence that lhe cabinet secretary, the
national treasury was informed of this
budgetary change, arising from the
additional revenue. contrary to provisions of
seclion 47(l) of the public finance
management (National goyernment)
regulations, 2015 which require such
disclosure.
The management was in breach of the
regulations.

available for audit
verifi cation and review.
The invitation for the 98'h

online Board meeling
was done via zoom and
Ihe links were circulated
lo each member for
purposes of attendance.

We also attach minutes of
the 98th Board meeting
for regarding payment
voucher no. 008 for your
reference-

4 Unsupported Motor Vehicles
Maintenence, Fuel and Oil Expenses

The statement of financial performance
reflects use of goods and services

expenditure of Kshs.5 7,78 I ,922. Included
and as disclosed in Note 14. Included in
this expenditure is repairs and maintenance
of motor vehicles expenditure of
Kshs.3,062, 198, out of which, the
Management failed to adequately support
an expenditure of Kshs.995,9l3 with
respective invoices, inspection reports and
receipts. To that, the Board operates
without an approved Transport Policy and
motor vehicle logbooks (GP.55) contrary
to its Human Resource Policies and
Procedures Manual 2020.
Consequently. the accuracy and
completeness of the expenditure on repairs
and maintenance of motor vehicles

The motor vehicle repairs
were inspected and GP55
log books were duly
filled and are hereby
available for your
reference.

Resolved
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Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

TimeframeReference
No of the
external
audit
report

Issue/observation from the auditor

amounting to Kshs.995,9l3 could not be

confirmed.

5 Unsupported journrl entries

Consequently, the accuracy and
completeness ofthejournal entries could not
be confirmed.

A review of the books of accounts
presented for audit revealed thal joumal
entries made in the system with a net

effect of Kshs.16,678,823 and credit
memos amounting to Kshs.4,246, 163

were passed in the books of accounts in
the year under review in various
accounts. However, joumal adjusting
vouchers supporting these transactions
were not availed for audit. This is

contrary to provisions of Regulation 103

of the Public Finance Management
(National Govemment) Regulations of
2015(l) Joumal entries prepared for all
adjustments shall be authorized by the
accounting officer or an officer
designated by him or her before posting
them in a financial record.

The journal entries
(appearing in the system
as credit memos) entries
correcting payment
voucher entries wrongly
posted in SAP system
and operate under the
double-entry system.

All these adjustments
were taken through
authorization as required.

Resolved

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES
Exclusion of Not€s to the Financial
Strtemcnts

The Management failed to make key
disclosures on credit risk, capital
commitments and surplus remission by way
of Notes to financial statements as required
by the Annual Financial Reporting Template
of 30th June 202 | -

The management made
applicable key
disclosures in the
financial statements
relating to fiedit risk
(note 30) and surplus
remission disclosure on
(pages xxx and l3).

Resolved

2 Budget Over-Expenditure

The slatement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparable basis of
Kshs.230,436,678. and Kshs.243,337,477
respectively resulting to an over-funding -
funding of Kshs.12,900,799 ofthe budget.

Similarly, the Board spent a total of
Kshs.22 I ,563,726 asainst an approved

The board will endeavour
to operate within the
approved budget. The
Expenditure were all
incurred for the purposes
for which they were
intended. The variances
were caused by market
price changes due to
inflations for some goods
and services from what

Resolved
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TimeframeReference
No of the
external
audit
rerrort

Issue/observation from the auditor Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

budget of Kshs.2 10,000,000 resulting to an
over -expenditure of Kshs. I0,348,5 I I or 5.
% of the budget. This is contrary to the
provisions of Regulation 43(b) of the Public
Finance Management (National
Govemrnent) Regulations of 201 5 which
states that the Accounting Officers shall
ensure that public funds entrusled to their
care are properly safeguarded and are
applied for purposes for
only which they were intended and
appropriated by the National Assembly.

had been planned and
therefore incurred in line
with Regulation 43(b).

3 Enforcement of Collcction of Regulatory
Levy

Review of the regulatory revenue revealed
that only two oi forty-seven (47) of the
Water Service Providers are cornpliant with
the requirement of remining a License
operation fee of 4Yo by the | 5th day of each
month to the regulator. This precludes that
the Board lost revenue realizable from
regulatory levy due to non-compliance of
Water Service Providers to the licensing
conditions and prevailing service level
agreements.
In the absence of enforcement of lhese
licensing conditions, the Board is held in
breach of its statutory obligation as provided
under Section 72( I ) (d) of Water Act (2016).

The board will strive to
collect regulatory leYies

from the water service
providers to ensure that
the board has enough
resources lo execute its
mandate.
Monitoring and
Enforcement
mechanisms has been
applied for non-
compliant water
companies and to ensure
compliance of levy
payments.

Resolved

4 Outstanding Imprest
A review of the system generated data
revealed that a balance of
Kshs.25.427,998.80 remained outstanding
under the Imprest\ Advance Control
Account (3242000) contrary to provisions of
Paragraph i.2 of National Treasurl'Circular
No. AC.3/88No1.7( l6) of 07th May 202 |
and for which the Board risks being held in
breach.
The audit was conducted in accordance with
ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities. financial
transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance. in all
material respects. with the authorities that
govem them. I believe that the audit

The board will endeavour
to comply with the
regulation 93(5) of the
PFM Act 2015 by
ensuring lhat imprests are

accounted for within 7

days after return to duty
slation.
posting relating to
imprest/ advance control
account has since been
posted and completed
and regularized in the
system accordingly.

Resolved
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Reference
No of the
external
audit
report

Issue/observation from the auditor Management
comments

Status
(resolved
/not
resolved)

Timeframe

evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
GOVERNANCE

I Non-preparation of Receipt Vouchers for
entity receipts

The Management made postings of entity
receipts into the general ledger without
preparation of pre-numbered receipt
vouchers in the year under review and no
such voucher(s) in whatever form were
presented for audit review.
By not conforming to requirements of
preparation of receipt vouchers, the board
risks being held in contravention of
Regulation 104 of the Public Finance
Management (National Government)
Regulations of 2015 104. (l) which states

that All receipts and payments vouchers of
public moneys shall be properly supported
by pre-numbered receipt and payment
vouchers and shall be supported by the
appropriate authority and documentation.
Consequently, the mitigating risks
associated with collection and banking ofall
receipts could not be confirmed.

All incomes are received
and posted directly riDto
the SAP system which
aulomatically generates

receipt vouchers and the
SAP system has pre
numbered receipts
vouchers for the levies
collected in the year.
Print out from the system
are available for your
audit verifications.

Resolved

2 lncomplete Register of Non-Current
Assets
The Board did not maintain a Register of
Non-Current Assets in the form prescribed
under Appendix 6 ofthe Cuidelines on Asset
and Liability Management in the Public
Sector of July 2020 as it did not maintain a

separate folios for each class of assets and
also failed to capture the details of the
Financier/ source of funds. Serial number.
Tag numbers, Make & Model of motor
vehicles , Date of Delivery I installation,
Payment Voucher number, Original
Location, Current Location, Replacement
Date (if applicable), Date of disposal,
Disposal value, Responsible officer, Asset
condition. and any other relevant Notes.

The board has

maintained the asset

register as per the
guidelines on asset and
liability management in
the public service of July
2020.
The updated register is
available for audit
verification.

Resolved
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